
 

 

 
Agenda for Scrutiny Committee 

Thursday, 1st December, 2022, 6.00 pm 
 
Members of Scrutiny Committee 

Councillors: M Allen (Chair), J Bailey, J Bonetta, A Bruce, 

M Chapman, O Davey, C Gardner, S Hawkins, J Kemp (Vice-
Chair), D Key, H Parr, E Rylance, B Taylor, J Whibley and 
T Woodward  

 
Venue: Council Chamber Blackdown House 

 
Contact: Sarah Jenkins; 

01395 517406 email; sjenkins@eastdevon.gov.uk 

(or group number 01395 517546) 
Wednesday, 23 November 2022 

 
 
 

1 Public speaking   

 Information on public speaking is available online 
 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 

3 Apologies   

4 Declarations of interest   

 Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making 

declarations of interest 
 

5 Matters of urgency   

 Information on matters of urgency is available online 

 

6 Confidential/exempt item(s)   

 To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the press) have 
been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt 
with in this way. 

 

7 Decisions made by Cabinet called in by Members for scrutiny in accordance with 
the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules   

 There are no items identified 

 

8 Portfolio Holder Annual Report - Sustainable Homes and Communities  (Pages 7 
- 17) 

9 Update on draft Training Strategy  (Pages 18 - 27) 

East Devon District Council 
Blackdown House 

Border Road 

Heathpark Industrial Estate 
Honiton 

EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 HONITON 

Tel: 01404 515616 

www.eastdevon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

page 1

https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/public-speaking/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-public-meetings/#article-content
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/matters-of-urgency/


10 Quarterly Performance Report  (Pages 28 - 72) 

11 Forward Plan  (Pages 73 - 74) 

 

 
 

 
Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, any members of the 
public are now allowed to take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and 

report on all public meetings (including on social media). No prior notification is needed but 
it would be helpful if you could let the democratic services team know you plan to film or 

record so that any necessary arrangements can be made to provide reasonable facilities for 
you to report on meetings. This permission does not extend to private meetings or parts of 
meetings which are not open to the public. You should take all recording and photography 

equipment with you if a public meeting moves into a session which is not open to the public.  
 

If you are recording the meeting, you are asked to act in a reasonable manner and not 
disrupt the conduct of meetings for example by using intrusive lighting, flash photography or 
asking people to repeat statements for the benefit of the recording. You may not make an 

oral commentary during the meeting. The Chair has the power to control public recording 
and/or reporting so it does not disrupt the meeting. 

 
Members of the public exercising their right to speak during Public Speaking will be 
recorded. 

 
Decision making and equalities 
 

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic 
Services Team on 01395 517546 

page 2

http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/


EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Minutes of the meeting of Scrutiny Committee held at Council Chamber, 

Blackdown House on 3 November 2022 

 
Attendance list at end of document 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.03 pm 
 

 
45    Public speaking  

 

There were no members of the public registered to speak. 

 
46    Minutes of the previous meeting  

 

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 October 2022 were agreed and signed as 
a true record. 

 
47    Declarations of interest  

 

There were no declarations of interest. 

 
48    Matters of urgency  

 

There were no matters of urgency. 
 

49    Confidential/exempt item(s)  

 

There were no confidential / exempt items. 
 

50    Decisions made by Cabinet called in by Members for scrutiny in 

accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules  

 

There were no decisions made by Cabinet called in for scrutiny. 
 

51    Portfolio Holder Annual Report - Finance  

 

Cllr Jack Rowland, Portfolio Holder for Finance, presented his Annual Report and 
thanked the officers involved for their assistance with its preparation, namely Simon 

Davey, Libby Jarrett, John Symes and Richard Easthope. 
 
The report highlighted the following: 

 The General Fund position was looking favourable in the current forecast. 

 It was noted that a number of requests for considerable sums had come through, 
following recent decisions, which totalled in excess of £500,000 and which would come 
out of the General Fund. 

 The funds shown in the Treasury Management report included monies collected on behalf 
of other precepting authorities and a high level of liquidity was required due to the need to 
draw on these funds. 

 Regarding budgeted income from car parking, the income projected for the whole year is 
£3,720,000 and as at the end of September, income received for the year to date was 
£3,108,190.  It should be borne in mind that the remaining budgeted income of £616,810 

page 3

Agenda Item 2



Scrutiny Committee 3 November 2022 
 

would be collected over the next six months, when the car parking winter rate would 
apply. 

 
In response to questions from Members, the following points were noted: 

 The figure of 980 more council tax collections included new build homes, empty homes 
brought back into use and homes which had been sub-divided. 

 Regarding investment strategy, Members were referred to the Treasury Strategy which 
sets out where and how investments are made and the associated risks.   

 The Medium Term Financial Plan sets out the financial modelling for the next 10 years 
including projected deficits.  It was noted that the projected deficit of approximately £3.8m 
in 2025/26 is due to the Government re-basing of business rate income.  The Medium 
Term Financial Plan must address how the deficit will be made up in the following years, 
and this is set out in full in the Plan and its appendices. 

 There is a need to keep a healthy General Reserve balance to mitigate against future 
unanticipated costs. 

 With regard to EV charging points in car parks, it had been very difficult dealing with the 
providers, and although charging points were in situ they were not necessarily connected.  
A number of charging points were about to become operational.  An EV policy review 
report would be brought to Cabinet later in the year setting out the position and what 
more could be done. 

 Regarding card payment facilities in car parks, it was noted that the majority of car parks 
would take card payments, with all using the Ringo system, subject to an adequate phone 
signal. 

 Figures for car parks were based on the number of transactions, and it was therefore 
difficult to know how many people were actually using car parks and how successful the 
charging system had been. 

 It was noted that staff in the Revenues, Benefits, Corporate Customer Service, Fraud and 
Compliance service had been redirected to work on dealing with the delivery of various 
Government support schemes.  Recruitment was also an issue.  The team worked in an 
agile manner which enabled staff to be redeployed within the service and conversations 
were ongoing to ensure that the service was properly resourced going into the winter 
months. 

 

The Committee wished to record its thanks to Libby Jarrett and her team for its 
excellent work in supporting local residents experiencing hardship. 

 
The Portfolio Holder was thanked for his report which was noted and accepted. 

 

52    Key issues in the service plans - briefing by the Chief Executive  

 

The Chief Executive introduced the Service Plan 2023-24 template and outlined how this 
informs the budget setting process and the subsequent discussions on the draft budget 

in January 2023. 
 
The main changes to the Service Plan template, in line with the Council Plan, were noted 

as follows: 
 Providing services with an opportunity to take stock of the current situation following the 

impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 Addressing the challenges of workforce planning. 

 Addressing the future digital and data programme which supports customer access and 
improved ways of working. 

 Support the work required under the financial sustainability model which feeds into the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 

It was noted that section 3 of the template is new and draws on the Council Plan, 
showing how each service will give meaning to and deliver on the following areas: 

page 4



Scrutiny Committee 3 November 2022 
 

 Systems thinking 

 Digital transformation 

 Customer access 
 Performance management data 

 Asset management 

 Income maximisation 

 
Section 4 would enable more emphasis to be put on workforce planning to address 

issues which had emerged over the past few years. 
 

Section 5 on carbon and resource use has an increased emphasis on understanding the 
actual and measureable benefits of carbon output reduction. 
 

Attention was also drawn to section 7 of the template which addresses the need to be 
better synchronised with the pressures affecting Strata and the increasing demands from 

its other partners.   
 
Responses to questions from Members included the following points: 

 The development of apprenticeships is a key piece of work being undertaken by the 
Personnel Committee and it was noted that the apprenticeship sector is now much 
broader than has traditionally been the case.  The Council is working on a programme of 
events to inform local schools and colleges of the value and opportunities available in the 
public sector with the intention of attracting apprentices to enable the Council to develop 
staff for the longer term.  It was noted that the current Reward Review sits alongside the 
development of apprenticeships and is also intended to provide long term career 
progression within the Council. 

 With regard to carbon and resource use and measurement via a carbon accounting tool, 
it was noted that the Council had been working with Exeter University who had been 
providing the information.  It was recognised that the Council needs to have more in-
house expertise to provide a more focussed understanding and assessment of carbon 
saving investments. 

 
The briefing was noted and accepted. 

 
53    Forward Plan  

 

The Forward Plan was agreed. 
 

Prior to the close of the meeting, there was a brief discussion regarding the elections in 
May 2024.  It was noted that there is the possibility of the introduction of voter 

identification for this election and the implications of this for both the Council and for 
voters’ engagement with the democratic process.  Regulations and Government 
guidance are still awaited which is impacting on the timing of public communication. 

 
 

 
 

Attendance List 

Councillors present: 

J Bonetta 

M Chapman 
O Davey 

J Kemp (Chair) 
E Rylance (Vice-Chair) 

page 5



Scrutiny Committee 3 November 2022 
 

B Taylor 
 
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting) 

J Rowland 
 
Officers in attendance: 

Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance 

Sarah James, Democratic Services Officer 
Libby Jarrett, Service Lead Revenues and Benefits 
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer 

Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
Mark Williams, Chief Executive 

 
Councillor apologies: 

M Allen 

J Bailey 
A Bruce 

C Gardner 
S Hawkins 
D Key 

H Parr 
J Whibley 

T Woodward 
 
 

 
 

 
Chair   Date:  

 

page 6



Homes & Communities Portfolio Holder Report 

Introduction 

‘My first few months in this role have been busy and I have enjoyed immensely getting to 

know the Officers in the service and understanding in much greater detail how this hugely 

operational, front facing area of the Council works.  

Part of my induction to the role has been about getting to know our Officers and I have 

taken it upon myself to understand parts of the service from an operational perspective, this 

has been helpful for me to understand how our services are delivered and where 
improvements need to be made. 

I have been delighted to meet many residents in my short time as PH, I have had many 

opportunities to understand and learn about the issues and problems that really effect 

people living in our District and I have seen the fundamental difference our housing service 

as well as other services we deliver makes to people life’s every single day. 

I have been working closely with Senior Officers to support the range of additional support 

measures we are putting in place to help people with the cost of living crisis, we have had to 

divert additional time and resources into this and this has come on top of many competing 
priorities and projects that the service are already focused on. 

We have many challenges ahead and I look forward to leading our team of passionate and 

dedicated Officers through this. 

I have tried to summarise through this report what has been a very busy period’ 

 

Existing Plans/Strategies in Place 
 

 

I have spent a significant amount of time familiarising myself with the range of plans and 

strategies that underpin my Portfolio area, of which there are many. 

Housing Service Plan 

We have continued to ensure a focus on the objectives as set out in the Housing Service 

Plan 22/23 and more recently I have met with the Housing Leadership Team to look 

carefully at objectives for the coming new Housing Service Plan for 2023/2024. This has 

been co-ordinated across the Housing Task Force also as I have been keen to ensure that the 

objectives set out for the Housing Task Force compliment the ongoing work of the housing 
service due to how interlinked they are. 

As a reminder of our core purpose as set out in the Housing Service Plan, our over-riding 

housing service vision is to deliver a decent home for all residents of East Devon. This 
compliments the Council Plan priority of Better Homes & Communities for All. 

I am committed to delivering our Housing Strategy which sets out four key objectives: 

page 7

Agenda Item 8



 To provide a housing options service for all who are homeless or threatened with 
homelessness; 

 To provide, maintain and manage our own council housing stock; 

 To work with housing developers and housing associations to deliver more 
affordable housing; 

 To regulate and improve other social rented, private rented and owner occupied 
housing. 

 
Public Health Strategic Plan 
 
I have spent time reviewing the Councils Public Health Strategic Plan to ensure we help 
more people be and stay healthy, enhance self-care and community resilience, and 
integrate and improve support for people in their own homes. 
 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy 2019- 2023 
 
I recently attended a monitoring group meeting to understand progress we are making on 
delivery of our Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019- 2023.  
 

The strategy is based upon the results of a review of homelessness in our area and has 
resulted in establishing the following four priorities:  
 

 Maximise prevention activities and outcomes; 
 Increase accommodation options; 

 Minimise rough sleeping; 
 Improve health and wellbeing. 

 
Recognising the pressure on this particular area of the Service, in September I worked with 

the Housing Service Lead to bring forward 4 additional posts required in order to ensure we 
can maintain the homelessness and advice service that through the current cost of living 

crisis is an area continuing to see increasing demand. I reviewed this carefully, 
understanding in detail why we needed to increase resources and we successfully approved 

making two current temporary Housing Officer positions permanent as well as getting 
approval for an additional full-time Temporary Accommodation Officer. This has given us 

some stability from a staffing perspective. 
 

This additional resource will ensure continuity for the increasing number of our residents 
having to access these services and also ensure the staff in this team have the additional 

resource they require to ensure they are not overwhelmed. As with all of the teams in 

housing, our Homelessness team are dealing with increasingly complex situations  everyday- 
situations such as people who are threatening suicide, very complex mental health 

problems, serious domestic violence and safeguarding cases where children are often at risk 
and Officers have to work closely with a number of additional agencies to provide 

emergency intervention to ensure peoples safety. 
 

 
 

page 8



Poverty Strategy 

 
I have continued to support Officers to ensure the work we are doing in this area remains a 

high priority.  Given the current economic instability across the Country, our commitments 
set out in this Strategy mean we have already been working on ensuring we are supporting 

people in a range of ways to lift them out of poverty and I have been proud to pick up the 
excellent work the previous Portfolio Holder started on this topic.  

As we know this situation shows no sign of improving any time soon, in fact this has got 
worse in my time as PH and in order to build on the excellent work already started here, I 

have supported the housing team to look at more measures we can put in place to help 
support people in a range of additional ways. Some of this I have set out below under the 

Housing Winter Pressures Plan. 
 

The five strategic objectives of the Poverty Strategy remain very much at the 
forefront of work across the whole of my Portfolio, these are all being led by the 

relevant Service Leads;  

1 Helping people on low incomes to maximise their household income and 
minimise their costs, building financial resilience and reducing indebtedness. 
Lead Service- Finance. 

2 Strengthening families and communities, including supporting groups of people 

that are more likely to experience poverty, and community and voluntary 
groups working to combat poverty. Lead Service- Housing. 

3 Promoting an inclusive economy, by raising skills and improving access to a 
range of employment opportunities for people on low incomes. Lead Service – 
Growth, Development & Prosperity. 

4 Addressing the high cost of housing, improving housing conditions, creating 

affordable warmth and reducing homelessness. Lead Service – Housing/ 
Environmental Health. 

5 Improving health outcomes for people on low incomes, including access to 
good diet, health care and ill health prevention. Lead Service – Environmental 

Health. 

Focused areas of work 
 

I have summarised below some particular areas of focus I have supported and led on; 
 

Housing Winter Pressures Plan 

 
Linked to our brilliant work set out in the Poverty Strategy, I have been keen to develop a 

specific housing offer that focuses on tenants living in our properties to ensure we are doing 
everything we can to help people through these increasingly difficult times. 

 
This work remains ongoing and so far includes; 

 
 Opening of our Community Centres across the District as warm spaces , we are now 

starting to open Centres on different days in different areas. This provides a safe, 
warm space for people to come together. As well as a warmth initiative, the spaces 

page 9



also provide a space where people who might be isolated can come together and the 

social benefits of this we are very keen to promote.  
 We are providing refreshments in our warm spaces and as all community centres 

have broadband, there are also benefits we can promote where people who could 
be digitally excluded are able to come along and access broadband which may help 

them with other areas of their life’s ( in a world where increasingly everything has to 
be accessed online!) 

 Creation of a specific housing hardship fund, £50k has been set aside for tenants 
who may need additional financial support this winter. Cases will be assessed on an 
individual basis but support can be offered in a range of ways such as help for those 
one off ‘big spends’ such as a washing machine breaking down- many of our tenants 

find themselves in difficult situations when such occurrences happen and I am keen 
to be able to help people directly with additional financial support. 

 The financial hardship fund can also be offered to tenants struggling with heating 
bills, we recognise the number of heating upgrades required across our stock and 

that due to this heating bills in these properties might be higher, we therefore are 
keen to assist where hardship arises due to this. 

 This specific financial support aimed at tenants is in addition to the number of grants 
and financial support streams that can be accessed via our revenue and benefits 

team. 

 Pro-actively visiting tenants who live in our least energy efficient properties, 
recognising the additional investment that is required into our stock to see what 

practical, short term measures can be put in place to help them get through the 
winter- we are issuing items such as draught excluders and blankets as practical , 

helpful items that our tenants can greatly benefit from. 

 Launching our special edition tenant magazine- Housing Matters that offers a 
brilliant range of practical, helpful tips for tenants and ways to cope with the current 
cost of living crisis. I have asked Officers to ensure all Members have access to the 

information so they can promote the magazine across their communities. 

 Pushing more pro-active measures in supporting people with financial resilience such 
as holding drop in sessions where tenants can come along and get advice and 
guidance on money management and maximising benefit income. Our rental Officers 

and Mobile Support Officers are regularly undertaking these reviews and continue to 
see success in significantly improving people’s financial situations.  

 
The work on the housing winter pressures plan is very much still in development but an 
excellent start has been made. We have a full-time Officer working on this area to ensure 
these initiatives are being developed at pace ready for the coming months. 
 

Strategic Asset Management/Stock Condition Survey/Decarbonisation 

 
Our ageing stock requires considerable investment.  

I have undertaken many site visits in my time as PH and recognise the huge level of 

investment that will be required over many years in order to ensure our stock is fit for 

purpose. Covid has got in the way of some of our previously planned upgrade works such as 

our kitchen and bathroom programmes but we are making good progress ramping these 

page 10



back up now across several sites in the District. I am keen to ensure we are looking at 

investment opportunities on a much wider scale such as whole site regeneration, where 

difficult decisions will need to be made around areas where disposal might be the best 

option. To drive all of these decisions, the absolute priority currently is that the stock 

condition survey continues to be carried out and that we start to ramp up the pace of it. The 

survey is being completed geographically across the District, it is gathering pace and we 

have had some successful recruitment into this newly formed team in order to keep this 

important project moving forward. 

We have ambitious plans to survey 100% survey of our stock by the end of the summer 

2023, I have been keeping the pressure up on this area in order to ensure we can achieve 

this. This data will be absolutely key in helping us review the Housing Revenue Account 

Business Plan which is in urgent need of a refresh on the basis that we need to ensure we 

understand the levels of investment required to our current housing stock. We have to 

consider the raft of new Legislation that has been introduced by Government in recent 

years to ensure our stock remains compliant.  Our borrowing capacity needs to be carefully 

considered particularly against risks such as the current rent cap that the Government are 

looking to impose as well as the rising cost of inflation and debt. We are about to 

commission external expertise to specifically undertake this refresh and rewrite of the 

Housing Revenue Account Business Plan and I look forward to seeing this progress. 

Housing contributes a significant amount to the council’s carbon footprint and therefore we 

have a big part to play in the council’s carbon neutral ambition. I am working with the 

Service to produce plans to reduce the carbon footprint of our tenant’s homes and housing 

services. This will involve significant expenditure over many years, so we are ensuring that 

the Housing Revenue Account prioritises expenditure over the next twenty years plus for 
this work and this will all be factored into the refresh of the Business Plan as outlined above.  

Whilst we await the data from the stock condition survey, we are not stood still- we are 
continuing to deliver upgrade programmes to our stock across a variety of work streams. 

 Off the back of previous successful bids we have made to central government for 

decarbonisation funding, we have also very recently submitted a further bid for funding 

under the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund, this is a bid for just over £2million over the 

next 2 years, we have committed almost the equivalent to match fund from the Housing 

Revenue Account. I am encouraging the team to access as much Government grant funding 
as we can in this area. 

 

Integrated Asset Management Contract 
 

Ensuring we are providing an efficient housing repairs service has been one of my key areas 

of focus and I have spent a considerable amount of time linking in with the Officers in this 
part of the service in order to better understand the operational workings of how we deliver 

this contract.  

page 11



I am acutely aware of the emphasis and importance placed on this area by tenants, many of 

them have told me this is the area of our housing service they care most about. 
 

One thing I have been particularly keen to work on is our reputation in this area.  
Coming into the role I was acutely aware that the our reputation in this area had been 

struggling for some time and I have therefore been keen to ensure we are getting out into 
our communities in an attempt to re-connect and engage with tenants. As one way of doing 

this I am working with the Officers on running a series of Social Value days and I have been 
delighted to attend and participate in all of these so far. I have been keen to encourage 

Members to attend these days in order to meet our contractors and learn more about the 
service we deliver. These events so far have been held in Lymebourne Park Sidmouth and 

Greenhaven, Budleigh Salterton, both were very successful with high attendance.  
Activities on the day have included; 

 Offering refreshments 
 A repair on the day service, with operatives on hand to respond immediately to 

responsive repairs that can be completed on the day. 
 Gardening and general clean ups of communal areas 

 Use of a large skip, we have encouraged tenants to use to dispose of items from 
their homes. 

 A money advice service, tenants could sit with one of our trained Officers and get 
tailored help and advice. 

 We used the days as community consultation opportunities, for example in 

Sidmouth we displayed plans of proposals to improve the bin areas and asked 
tenants to tell us their views. 

 Representatives from partner agencies such as the fire service and the police have 
attended the days also. 

 Attendance by the probation service who engaged on some of the estate clean up 
work we wanted to achieve, this was very successful and I have asked the team to 

consider where we could engage them on other projects across the district. 
 

 
Our performance indicators that underpin our contract performance have continued to 

steadily improve which is a positive step taking into account the extreme pressures on 
staffing in this area.  I have been keen to limit additional distractions for this team in order 

to ensure they can remain entirely focused on delivery. I have been pleased to see a focus 
remaining on the specific Action Plan that was created at the beginning of the year that  

highlighted a number of areas that we have needed to improve on, in particular the need 
for better communication with tenants. I take many opportunities to visit tenants who have 

been dis-satisfied with our service and have ensured always that Officers are dealing with 

such cases urgently and that we are learning from what has gone wrong.  
Due to some of the vacancies we have been carrying in this area (out of a team of 4 

Maintenance Surveyors, we still only have 2 in post) the service has been what I would refer 
to as  ‘firefighting’ and there has been too much pressure on the remaining Off icers. I have 

supported the management team to engage the support of a specialist consultant who is 
offering valuable support to the Property and Asset Manager to ensure we can remain 

focused on the issues raised in the Action Plan. 
 

page 12



As always at this time of year, the winter will bring significant demand and the service will 

come under increased pressure. We are certainly going into this period in a stronger 
position then we were in a few months ago however this area still needs particular focus 

and I intend to ensure I remain closely linked in. 
 

Void properties 
 

Increasing numbers of people on our waiting list means we must ensure we are turning 

properties around as quickly as we can to ensure people are able to access safe, secure 

accommodation. We have struggled in this area over recent months and I have continued to 

drive the urgency and focus that is required to ensure our performance is improving, this is 

now starting to happen. I have liaised closely with Managers to understand some of the 

delays we have experienced and have encouraged us to focus more resources in this area in 

order to improve.  Officer turnover in this area has not helped us and this coupled with our 

Contractor struggling to obtain labour resources has further added to the problem. This area 

is however now moving in a more positive direction, work still to do and this will not be 

resolved overnight but I am very confident we are moving in a better direction but it is an 

area I will be continuing to monitor closely. 

Damp and Mould problems in our Housing Stock/ the work of Private Sector Housing 
Team. 

 

Again, due to the age of our housing stock, issues with damp and mould regularly arise. We 

have a legislative responsibility to ensure our homes remain habitable and I have been very 

supportive of the Officers bringing forward our first ever specific housing damp and mould 

policy that will set out clearly our responsibilities in this area and how we set out to manage 

these issues in order to ensure the comfort of tenants living in our homes. This is a complex 

area and we must ensure we are pro-actively supporting and educating tenants to manage 

damp and mould as part of how they live in their properties, our policy will set out how we 

intend to do this. 

Issues of damp and mould are not unique to social housing, many residents living in the 

private sector find themselves in a situation where they struggle to get the support and help 

they need from their landlord to deal with such issues.  

As the local housing authority, our Environmental Health Private Sector Housing team are 

continuing to provide a key service that ensure they are providing information; advice and 

enforcement in the owner occupied and private rented properties including registered 

social landlords. 

Private landlords have a duty to comply with a range of legislation to prevent damp and 

mould; to have suitable heating and effective energy efficiency measures. To ensure that 
their property is fit for habitation and has an energy performance certificate A to F. 

page 13



PSH has a role to investigate and undertake risk assessments under the Housing Act 2004 

The HHSRS covers 29 hazards including ‘damp and mould’ and ‘excess cold’.  

This area of our work is absolutely critical and as recently highlighted by the tragic death of 

Awaab Ishak in Rochdale, is an area that we as a Council must continue to prioritise and I am 
having regular discussions with the Senior Officers about these areas of our service. 

 

Community Development/ Launch of Resident Involvement Consultation exercise 
 

I have been very keen to drive our focus in this area to ensure we are back out in our 
communities and visible and our team of Community Development Officers play a key role 

in this. I have overseen a restructure in this team and supported the need to recruit a 
dedicated operational Manager into this team. I have been pleased to see us ramp up in this 
area in a number of ways including the continuation of our work with Fairshare to tackle 
food poverty as well as linking in with the many brilliant  voluntary/community groups we 
have in East Devon who are undertaking fantastic work in the Community.  
 
I was pleased to see the Housing Review Board approve the recommendations to 
commence consultation on our new Resident Involvement Strategy. Ensuring tenants have 
the opportunity to input and help us shape our services is something I am very passionate 
about and the launch of our new Strategy which is due to commence early next year is a 
great opportunity for us. I have asked the Senior Officers to ensure we promote this  

important opportunity for tenants to get involved with the consultation and help us shape 
and improve our services to ensure the things that really matter to tenants are at the heart 

of everything we do. 
 

Homes for Ukraine 

 
Following the invasion of Ukraine and the Governments commitment to support people 
fleeing the war, we have had to work closely with Devon County Council to set up and 
deliver the Homes for Ukraine scheme. At the start, considerable time had to be spent 

setting up how this was going to delivered and a virtual project team was formed with 
relevant Officers from across the Council engaged in ensuring we could meet all 

expectations being placed on us by central Government. This has been achieved successfully 
and recently we have also assigned a dedicated Project Officer to oversee the area and work 

closely with our partners in Citizens Advice to ensure we are offering the required levels of 
support and welcoming people to ensure they are settling into our District. The scheme 

does bring risks for us with the potential of increasing levels of homelessness, particularly 
where sponsor arrangements might end and people may turn to us for support with 

accommodation options. As mentioned above, we have increased resourcing in the team in 
order to prepare for that. 

 
Housing Task Force 

 
As the Chair of the Social Housing Task and Finish Forum I led wide ranging discussions 

around how we could increase our supply of social housing and redress the balance of the 

page 14



losses incurred by the Right To Buy Scheme. There were a number of recommendations 

tabled which the forum felt had merit and required further investigation and resourcing. As 

a result I have been pivotal in the inception and implementation of the new Housing Task 

Force  

The remit of the Task Force is to increase delivery of both Affordable and Social Housing 

across the district and reduce the numbers of people currently on our Devon Home Choice 

waiting list. The service is initially funded for 2 years after which time it’s outcomes will be 
reviewed 

The team went live in mid-February 2022 and like most of the council has struggled to 

recruit the required posts. However at the point of writing we do have a part time Enabling 

Officer and a part time Development Surveyor working alongside the Service Lead. 

Following the Pay Review we are hopeful we will be able to recruit to the remaining posts 
early in the new year. 

In spite of the above the team has got off to a strong start with their initial focus being on 

redevelopment of land within HRA ownership. They started by reviewing our areas of 
housing need and cross referencing this with our underutilised garage sites.  

Procurement has been successfully undertaken and 3 sites in Honiton have been sent to our 

Preferred Development Partner ZedPods to take through site design and financial feasibility 

in preparation for sign off by cabinet. We will shortly be having a ZedPods Demo Home sited 

on the upper overflow carpark at Blackdown House, for use in tenant and community 

consultation and for members to use as publicity to show the strides EDDC are taking in 

dealing with both the current housing crises and the climate change agenda. At this point 
we believe these three sites will yield us up to 25 new carbon neutral homes in mid-2023 

In addition to this the team have been reviewing wider council assets that have been 

earmarked for disposal, which could be redeveloped to provide housing. Jarvis Road Carpark 

and Toilet Block in Exmouth is one such site with real potential. An architect has been 

instructed to draw up initial design schematics in preparation for a report to go to SMT+ 

before Christmas  

They are also exploring One Public Estate sites and are currently working with DCC on 

securing the asset transfer of an old school site in Honiton. If succes sful this would also yield 

20-25 homes. We hope to complete negotiations on price and agree terms before Christmas  

 

We are currently looking to purchase a smaller site in Sidbury which already has planning for 

7 homes. We are keen to acquire this site to help address the dire need for housing in the 

Sidmouth area as development within the town is severely limited.  We also have a 

significant commuted sum to spend in the area and we hope to secure the land within this 

amount  

We have an indicative pipeline of development opportunities for further exploration and 

feasibility in addition to those mentioned above and we are actively seeking others. To 

page 15



support us in the preparation and delivery of schemes we are procuring (via a framework) 

specialist consultants. We had a favourable response to our expression of interest for 
Architectural Services and the team are currently reviewing the responses    

The team continues to work closely with Homes England, our RP and CLT partners to 
develop affordable housing 

There are a number of potential risks to highlight for the future of our development and 
growth aspirations, not least of which is the current economic crises. We have competing 
priories for the HRA budget (carbon reduction, maintenance impacts of the stock condition 
survey and our desire to build new homes) The proposed rent cap will impact widely and 
during discussions with our RP partners they have stated that they will very likely be scaling 
back on their affordable housing delivery in order to absorb the los ses incurred to their 

rental income.  The Natural England Embargo on development within the Axe Valley is also 
having an impact as we have a number of good sized potential sites in the area, but we are 

continuing to explore these and add them to the pipeline in preparation for the embargo 
being lifted   
 
  

Conclusion 
 
This report has touched briefly on what I have considered to be some key areas that have 
been a focus for my first 6 months in role but there are many areas of my Portfolio that I 

have not included and some of these areas I am yet to familiarise myself with.  
 

There are many challenges ahead for the service, there is a raft of new legislation coming 
into play in the format of the Building Safety Act and the Social Housing Act and I have seen 

much preparation for this to ensure we are well prepared. Some up and coming work for me 
includes a review of the void standard to ensure our offer of a home to people really does 

set people up with the best start as well as plans for a number of Estate walkabouts in some 
of the areas I am still not familiar with. I am also part way through attending a number of 

team meetings across the Service where I have a brilliant opportunity to meet frontline 
Officers, I have used these opportunities so far to thank staff on behalf of Cabinet for the 

amazing work that they do. 
 
The ramping up of the work of the Housing Task Force is exciting and it has been great 
watching this develop, I look forward to continuing to work closely with Officers to deliver 
new homes- as we know this has been an over-arching priority for us for a number of years. 

 
I have been pleased with progress being made particularly given the recruitment challenges 

that the housing team have had to endure and this remains very much ongoing as although 
progress has been made in many areas the recruitment and retention challenges continue 

to impact. Through my fortnightly briefings with the Strategic Lead and the Housing Service 
Lead, I have supported them as best I can with decisions that have had to be made quickly in 

order to maintain frontline service delivery. 
 

I remain ambitious and passionate about how we can continue to build our services but 
want to see more exposure of the great work being undertaken. I have set up a weekly 

page 16



communications briefing with the communications team and representatives from the 

housing team to ensure that we are constantly pushing good news stories. We need to 
celebrate more the diverse range of services we offer and recognise the difference we are 

continuing to make to the life’s of people in our District. 
 
I am happy to expand on any of the information I have provided in this report. 

Dan ledger – Portfolio Holder Sustainable Homes & Communities 

page 17



1 
 

  
                      

 

Member Development Plan – 2022 - 2027 
 

Introduction 
 
The Council Plan 2021 – 23 sets out the Council’s vision which is to make a positive 
difference to residents’ lives and our environment in East Devon. 

 
The way we will make a positive difference to residents’ lives and our environment will be 

influenced by our values. These include: 

 seeking continuous improvement of our high performing council  

 listening to and learning from our residents and caring for them 
 adapting as a council to new ways of working and refreshed priorities whilst 

recognising the pressure on resources 
 

The Council Plan focuses on the things that matter most to residents and is based on three 
priorities; better homes and communities for all, a greener East Devon and a resilient 

economy. 
 
Elected members are accountable for the delivery of the Council’s objectives. This relies on 
them having the key skills and knowledge to balance varied responsibilities and fulfil their 
role as Councillors.  
 
Given the demands placed upon all Councillors, ensuring good opportunities for learning 
and development is a key aim at East Devon. 
 
We provide training in a number of different ways which include: 

 Mandatory training immediately on election 
 Phased induction training following election 

 Training for Councillors elected during the civic term 

 Face to Face 

 E-learning (Learning Nexus): Learning Nexus 
Some helpful tips on ‘How to navigate Nexus’ can be found at the end of this 

document 

 LGA Workbooks Councillor workbooks | Local Government Association 

 

page 18

Agenda Item 9

https://academy.learningnexus.co.uk/ivy_lms/idxlms.htm
https://www.local.gov.uk/councillor-workbooks


2 
 

Training is split into mandatory training (Standards in Public Life, Code of Conduct, Equalities 

and Safeguarding) immediately on election, phased induction training and highly 

recommended on-going training and development. 

 

If a training need arises which is not outlined in this Plan, please contact myself or Susan 

Howl, Democratic Services Manager (showl@eastdevon.gov.uk) to discuss this requirement.  

Should you require a Learning Nexus password or password reminder, please contact Ann 

Woodland awoodland@eastdevon.gov.uk. 

 

Please do contact me if you have any feedback on this plan or the training provided. 

 

Cllr Sarah Jackson 

Portfolio-holder for Democracy, Transparency and Communications  

 

 

 

1 Mandatory Training immediately on election 
 

Mandatory training is for ALL Councillors on election.  The Council’s Code of Conduct has 

introduced a requirement that Councillors undertake the Code of Conduct training and that, 

if training is not undertaken, a Councillor would be in breach of the Code.   

 

 

Type of training Subject Provider Completion 

date 

Additional resources 

/ continuous 

development  

 

1 Mandatory   

training for all 

Councillors 
(immediately 

following 
ordinary 

elections) 

Councillors 

Induction  

To include 
using Council 

provided IT 

Democratic 

Services 

On election New Councillors – 

LGA Workbook 

Councillor induction 
– LGA e-learning 

module 

 Councillors 

Welcome 
Sessions (1 & 

2) 

Note: different 

sessions, not 

repeats 

 

Chief 

Executive & 
Monitoring 

Officer 

On election Being an Effective 

Ward Councillor – 
LGA Workbook 

LGA e-learning 
module 

Handling Casework – 

LGA Workbook 
 

page 19

mailto:showl@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:awoodland@eastdevon.gov.uk


3 
 

Type of training Subject Provider Completion 

date 

Additional resources 

/ continuous 
development  

 

1 Mandatory  

Training 
continued 

   Working with Town 

and Parish Councils 

– LGA Workbook 

 

 Standards in 

Public Life 
 

Monitoring 

Officer 

On election Councillor/Officer 

Relations – LGA 
Workbook 

 

 Code of 
Conduct 

 

Monitoring 
Officer 

On election LGA e-learning 
module 

 The Equalities 

Framework 

 

External 

training 
provider 

On election 

and as 
required 

thereafter 

Diversity, Equality & 

Discrimination – 
Learning Nexus 

Equality, Diversity & 
Inclusion – LGA e-

learning module 

 

 Safeguarding External 

training 
provider 

On election 

and as 
required 

thereafter 

 

 

 

 

2 Phased Induction Training following election 
 

Phased induction training is for all Councillors and is split into the following: 

 

2.1  General induction training for all Councillors – this gives an overview of the work of the   

Council’s Committees and Members’ roles and responsibilities, including the role of the 

frontline Councillor. 

 

2.2  Mandatory training for all Councillors for the Planning Committee and Licensing & 

Enforcement Committee as these Committees have a regulatory function.   Members 

are only able to sit on these Committees if they have attended the appropriate training.  

Following an election, the intention is for all Councillors to be trained as membership of 

Committees may change during the civic term and Councillors may be appointed to 

these Committees at a later date. 

 

page 20



4 
 

2.3  Pre-meeting briefings – training specifically for the first meeting of Committees and 

Panels to include current issues and work programme. 

 

Type of training Subject Provider Completion date Additional 
resources / 

continuous 

development  

 

2.1 General 

Induction 

training for all 
Councillors 

(immediately 
following 

ordinary 
elections) 

 

Data Protection 

Training 

Monitoring 

Officer 

 

 

As per induction 

timetable 

 

Data 

Protection 

Training 
module – 

Learning 
Nexus 

 

Data 

Protection Act 

2018 – 

Learning 
Nexus 

 

UK GDPR – 

LGA e-learning 

module 
 

 The Role of the 
Frontline 

Councillor 

External 
training 

provider 

 

As per induction 
timetable 

 

 Scrutiny training 

 

External 

training 

provider 

Prior to 

attending first 

Scrutiny 

Committee 
meeting 

Scrutiny – LGA 

Workbook 

Scrutiny of 

Finance – LGA 
Workbook 

Scrutiny for 
Councillors – 

LGA e-learning 
module 

Good Scrutiny 

Guide – Centre 

for Public 
Scrutiny 

 

 

page 21



5 
 

Type of training Subject Provider Completion date Additional 

resources / 
continuous 

development  

 

2.1 General 

Induction 

training for all 
Councillors 

continued 

Overview 

training 

 

External 

training 

provider 

Prior to 

attending first 

Overview 
Committee 

meeting 

 

 

 Strategic 

Planning 

Chief Executive 

& Service Lead 

 

Prior to 

attending first 

Strategic 

Planning 
Committee 

meeting 
 

 

 Overview of 

Recycling & 

Waste Service  

 

Recycling 

Team & Suez 

 

As per induction 

timetable 

 

 Overview of 

Local 
Government 

Finance issues: 

Budget setting 

Audit & 
Governance 

 
Asset 

Management 

 

Treasury 

Management 

 

External 

training 
provider 

 

As per induction 

timetable and 
prior to 

attending first 

meeting of 

Committees 

Local 

Government 
Finance – LGA 

Workbook 

LGA e-learning 

module 

 

 Housing & 
tenant 

participation 

 

 

 

 

 

 On election and 
as required 

thereafter 

 

page 22



6 
 

Type of training Subject Provider Completion date Additional 

resources / 
continuous 

development  

 

2.1 General 

Induction 

training for all 
Councillors 

continued 

Mock Council 

debate – the 

Constitution 
and statutory 

procedures in 

action 

 

Monitoring 

Officer & 

Democratic 
Services 

As per induction 

timetable and 

before first 
ordinary Council 

meeting 

 

 Effective 

meetings & 

chairing skills 

External 

training 

provider 

 

As per induction 

timetable 

Chairing Skills 

– LGA 

Workbook 

 

 

     

2.2 Mandatory  
training for all 

Councillors 

Planning  

Committee 

Licensing & 
Enforcement  

Committee 

 

 

 

Planning 
Committee 

Members 

Service Lead & 
Development 

Manager 

Prior to 
attending first 

Planning 
Committee 

meeting 

Planning – LGA 
Workbook 

Planning – LGA 

e-learning 
module 

 

 Licensing 

Committee 

Members 

Barrister (in 

person) 

Barrister 

(online) 

Prior to 

attending first 

Licensing 

Committee 
meeting 

Online videos 

– Cornerstone 

Chambers 

website 

Licensing & 

Regulation – 
LGA e-learning 

module 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

page 23



7 
 

Type of training Subject Provider Completion date Additional 

resources / 
continuous 

development  

 

2.3 Pre-meeting 

briefings 

Annual Council 

(All Councillors) 

Chief Executive Immediately 

before Annual 

Council meeting 
 

 

 Strategic 
Planning  

Service Lead Prior to first 
Strategic 

Planning 

Committee 

 

 

 Planning  Service Lead Prior to first 

Planning 

Committee 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 Asset 

Management 

Forum 

Members  

 

Strategic Lead 

Finance 

Prior to first 

Asset 

Management 

Forum meeting 

 

 

 Housing Review 
Board Members  

 

Strategic Lead 
Housing, 

Health & 

Environment 

 

Prior to first 
Housing Review 

Board meeting 

 

 Recycling & 

Waste 

Partnership 
Board Members 

 Prior to first 

Recycling & 

Waste 
Partnership 

Board meeting 

 

 

 Scrutiny 

Committee 

Members  

External 

training 

provider 

Prior to first 

Scrutiny 

Committee 

meeting 

 

 

page 24



8 
 

 Budget Setting 

& Capital 
Allocations 

Panel Members 

Strategic Lead 

Finance 

Prior to first 

Budget Working 
Party meeting 

 

 

 Overview 

Committee  

Members 

External 

training 

provider 

Prior to first 

Overview 

Committee 

meeting 
 

 

 Audit & 
Governance 

Committee  

Members 

Strategic Lead 
Finance 

Prior to first 
meeting of the 

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee 

 

 

 

 

3 Highly Recommended 
 

The following training and development is highly recommended both after election and as 

refresher training or on-going development.  Information can be found at the following 

links: 

 

New councillor hub | Local Government Association 

 

Councillor e-learning | Local Government Association 

 

Councillor workbooks | Local Government Association 

 

Acting on Climate Change 

 

LGA Workbook 

 

As required 

Biodiversity for Councils 

 

LGA e-learning module As required 

Bribery and Fraud Prevention 
 

LGA Workbook As required 

Commissioning Services LGA Workbook 

LGA e-learning module 

 

As required 

 

Community Engagement & Leadership LGA e-learning module As required 

Community Safety LGA Workbook As required 

 

Creating a ‘fit for the future 

organisation’  

 

LGA Workbook As required 

 

page 25

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/leadership-workforce-and-communications/new-councillor-hub
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/leadership-workforce-and-communications/councillor-development/councillor-e-learning
https://www.local.gov.uk/councillor-workbooks


9 
 

Economic Development 

 

LGA e-learning module As required 

Engaging Young People LGA Workbook As required 

 

Facilitation and Conflict Resolution LGA Workbook 

LGA e-learning module 

As required 

Handling complaints for service 

improvement 
 

LGA Workbook As required 

Handling Intimidation 

 

LGA e-learning module As required 

Health and Safety in the Council 

 

LGA Workbook As required 

Influencing Skills LGA Workbook 

LGA e-learning module 

As required 

 

Media Skills Training External Trainer As required 

 

Police & Crime Panels LGA e-learning module As required 
 

Safeguarding Adults 
 

Learning Nexus As required 

Social Media Training 1-2-1 with Communications Team 
 

As required 

Stress Management and Personal 

Resilience 

 

LGA Workbook 

LGA e-learning module 

As required 

Supporting Mentally Healthier 
Communities 

 

LGA e-learning module As required 

Supporting Residents with Complex 

Issues 

 

LGA Workbook 

LGA e-learning module 

As required 

Whistleblowing 

 

Learning Nexus As required 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

page 26



10 
 

How to Navigate Learning Nexus 

 

Learning Nexus 
 

To find your chosen subject, please search the course catalogue which can be found on the opening 

screen of Learning nexus.  Just type a key word or words, such as ‘data protection’ into the box.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Your options will appear on the next screen.  Click on the coloured text of the course name to access 
the e-learning course and follow the instructions.   

 
 

 
 

 

page 27

https://academy.learningnexus.co.uk/ivy_lms/idxlms.htm


Report to: Scrutiny Committee 

 

Date of Meeting 1st December 2022 

Document classification: Part A Public Document 

Exemption applied: None 

Review date for release N/A 

 

Quarterly monitoring of performance – 2nd quarter 2022-23 July 2022 to September 2022 

Report summary: 

This report provides performance information and progress against our performance indicators 
and key objectives from across the council services. 

Is the proposed decision in accordance with: 

Budget    Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Policy Framework  Yes ☒ No ☐  

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that Members consider performance against delivery of our key performance 

indicators for the 2nd quarter of 2022/23 so that issues can be addressed. 

 

Reason for recommendation: 

So that Members can gain a clear view of progress against what we said we would deliver in our 

service plans and deal with performance issues arising 

 

Officer: Joanne Avery, Management Information Officer – javery@eastdevon.gov.uk 

 

Portfolio(s) (check which apply): 

☐ Climate Action and Emergency Response 

☐ Coast, Country and Environment 

☒ Council and Corporate Co-ordination 

☐ Democracy, Transparency and Communications 

☐ Economy and Assets 

☐ Finance 

☐ Strategic Planning 

☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities 

☐ Tourism, Sports, Leisure and Culture 

 

Equalities impact Low Impact 

  

Climate change Low Impact 

Risk: Low Risk; A failure to monitor performance may result in customer complaints, poor service delivery 
and may compromise the Council’s reputation.  

Links to background information   

page 28

Agenda Item 10



Appendix A – Performance indicator report quarter two 2022-23 

Appendix B – Service objectives report quarter two 2022-23 

 

Link to Statement of Intent 

Priorities (check which apply) 

☐ Better Homes and Communities for all  

☐ Greener East Devon 

☐ A resilient Economy 

☒ Services that matter 

 
 

Report in full 

1. This quarterly report will be providing details of our performance of our council wide 
performance indicators and key objectives from our service plans. It also includes a roundup of 

some of the outputs and achievements from across the authority throughout 2022-23.   

 

2. This year there are more service performance indicators than previously reported on. For most 

of these new indicators this is a benchmark year and so there are no targets yet. We also have 
some indicators that are showing on track or variation but five are showing a status of concern. 

 

Number of households living in temporary accommodation – Snapshot at the end of the 

quarter (30.09.22) – figure includes 31 households in spot purchase accommodation. Figure 
compares with a total of 35 at the same time the previous year, a total which included 11 

households in spot purchase accommodation. Two main issues have created this overall rise in 
numbers, first of all the huge increase in new homeless cases, especially those presenting where 

they are already homeless as opposed to being threatened with homelessness, and secondly the 
severe lack of options with which to resolve homeless situations ie huge demand and increased 
competition for all forms of social housing, a lack of affordability and limited options within the 

private sector, and a lack of supported accommodation projects. 

Working days lost due to sickness absence. - Sickness absence rates remain above target. 

This is due to Covid absence and there is also an increase in cases of medium and long term 
absence as a result of personal stress, anxiety and fatigue related to bereavement and some staff 
are expressing concerns with dealing with continued operational demands.  Additional training has 

been sourced, funded from the public health budget, to support staff who are experiencing mental 

page 29

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/papers/overviewscrutiny/011222bpcabinetpireportQ2.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/papers/overviewscrutiny/011222bpcabinetpireportQ2.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/papers/overviewscrutiny/011222bpcabinetserviceobjectivesreportQ2.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/papers/overviewscrutiny/011222bpcabinetserviceobjectivesreportQ2.pdf
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/council-business/our-plans/council-plan/


health difficulties. Sickness absence continues to be actively managed and employees are 
supported in accordance with the Absence Management Policy. 

Percentage of Stage 2 complaints responded to within stated timeframes. - Delays in 

responses in some cases due to complaint volumes and resourcing/workload issues for some 

service teams. 

Days taken to process new Housing Benefit claims and Days taken to process changes to 
Housing Benefit claims - The number of days taken to process new claims and changes has 

risen as we have had to divert a full time member of staff to administer the Homes for Ukraine 
guests and hosts payments. This has been a significant amount of work and is in addition to the 

on-going high volume of work generated by the cost of living crisis and the second household 
support fund announced by the government. We have also had to design and implement the 
discretionary energy rebate scheme whilst having a number of staff taking their summer leave.  

We are continuing to work on ensuring Benefit claims are dealt with as quickly as possible and are 
looking at recruiting another member of staff to replace the member of staff dealing with the 

Homes for Ukraine payment applications.  

On top of that I need to also raise that - our working age caseload is being reduced due to 
Housing Costs needing to be claimed through Universal Credit. Our working age case load for 

new claims are now for those living in temporary accommodation and specified accommodation. 
These are much more in depth and the specified accommodation cases are requiring further 

information from landlords some of which is not readily available and is taking time to be provided 
to us. This all results in our new claims for working age households taking longer to process than 
they previously had. 

 

See Appendix A for more details of the key performance indicators for quarter two 2022-23. 

 

4. Most of our current key service objectives that have been taken from the Service plans for 
2021-22 are showing as on track to be achieved or with a variation which would indicate a mild 

concerns or minor setback for the objective. However five are showing a status of concern. 

 

Improve void turnaround times and review the Void Standard for properties being re-let as 

part of our Price Per Void contract, and ensure that a suitable lettable standard is achieved 
for new tenants achieving ‘right first time’. - Completion of Voids within Target is a concern, 

performance in months 1 and 3 of Q2 was poor although there was improvement in month 2; void 

completion time in days was poor in months 1 and 2 but there was improvement in month 3, this 
improvement is continuing into Q2. In light of the concern a full Void review led by external 

consultants, Echelon has been commissioned and have commenced work. 

page 30

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/papers/overviewscrutiny/011222bpcabinetpireportQ2.pdf


Recruit and support the development of our Compliance team that will sit within the 
Property and Asset team. Ensure the Compliance Manager is supported to ensure 

appropriate resourcing and focus to embed and develop the new team. Embrace and 
prepare for the changes anticipated in the Building Safety Act, including the appointment 

of Building Safety Managers. Review compliance procedures by an external body to drive 
continuous improvement. - Recruitment remains a challenge; at present we have recruited into 

the Administrative roles and one Surveyor role, asbestos and radon (the Surveyor has not yet 

started with us. 

Review compliance procedures by an external body to drive continuous improvement. - 

Currently there is no progress on this as recruitment remains an issue. 

Complete the Play Strategy linked to our adopted Green Space Plan with an action plan to 
improve outdated sites, ensure appropriate provision, introduce play space and ‘play along 

the way’ micro parks by September 2022. - Strategy has been largely completed, but required 

minor updates, however the senior engineer delivering the work has been on long term sick, so 

the strategy has not progressed with a report through cabinet. No spare resource with other team 
members to push forward. 

Revising the Cemetery Regulations to ensure an updated and fit for purpose regime for 

burials by Dec 2022. - Timescales for delivery have been delayed due to the significant 

impact/demands of taxi fares reviews twice in 2022. Aim to finalise draft in Nov 22 to consult early 

2023 

See Appendix B for more details of the service key objectives and their current status.  

 

Financial implications: 

 There are no direct financial implications 

Legal implications: 

 No legal comments are required 

page 31

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/papers/overviewscrutiny/011222bpcabinetserviceobjectivesreportQ2.pdf


PIs report 22/23

Quarterly report for 2022/2023
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Flag: Include: Quarterly
Filtered by Performance Status: Include PI Status: Achieved, Concern, Variation, 

Excellent, No Target

Key to Performance Status:
Performance 
Indicators: 

No Data Concern Variation Achieved Excellent

Key to change on same period in previous year:

é Improved Performance ê Worse Performance çè Unchanged

Key to +/- Column:

+
Higher figures are 
better

-
Lower figures are 
better

OFF
Direction cannot be 
determined

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

Green waste 
number of new 
customers

+ n/a 624 498 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Number of transactions within Q2, which is total number of new customers.  Slightly down on last quarter, 
possibly due to a hot/dry summer.

(JA)  

Average time taken 
to deal with street 
cleaning cases

+ n/a 2 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

Green waste 
income from new 
customers

+ n/a £31,104 £25,104 n/a

Management Notes:

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev Year 

End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Greener East Devon

PIs report 22/23

page 32



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

Average number of 
days taken to clear 
fly tipping cases

+ n/a 10.0 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 1 - 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

Number of fly 
tipping cases.

+ n/a 267 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

Number of 
requests for toilet 
cleaning & 
maintenance

+ n/a 165 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

Average time taken 
to deal with 
requests for toilet 
cleaning & 
maintenance

+ n/a 2 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

Number of overdue 
grass cutting 

+ n/a 96 n/a

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev Year 

End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Greener East Devon

PIs report 22/23

page 33



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

cases

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

Average time taken 
to deal with 
overdue grass 
cutting cases

+ n/a 2 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

Number of street 
cleaning cases

+ n/a 54 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, however the team are 
working with Strata to resolve this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at improving data 
visualisation and automation. 

(JA)  

NI191 Residual 
household waste 
in kg per 
household

- 61 62 é

Management Notes:

NI192 Percentage 
of Household 
waste sent for 
reuse, recycling 
and composting

+ 50 (2/4) 62 60 ê

Management Notes:

Percentage of 
municipal waste 
for disposal 
(incineration and 
landfill)

- 38 40 ê

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev Year 

End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Greener East Devon

PIs report 22/23

page 34



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

Management Notes:

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev Year 

End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Greener East Devon

Number of 
households living 
in temporary 
accommodation

- 40 (2/4) 58 56 ê

Management Notes:
(Quarter 1 - 2) 

Snapshot at the end of the quarter (30.09.22) – figure includes 31 households in spot purchase 
accommodation. Figure compares with a total of 35 at the same time the previous year, a total which 
included 11 households in spot purchase accommodation. Two main issues have created this overall rise in 
numbers, first of all the huge increase in new homeless cases, especially those presenting where they are 
already homeless as opposed to being threatened with homelessness, and secondly the severe lack of 
options with which to resolve homeless situations ie huge demand and increased competition for all forms 
of social housing, a lack of affordability and limited options within the private sector, and a lack of supported 
accommodation projects

(JA)  

Total amount of 
money that has 
been distributed 
via community 
grants 

+ n/a £5,000.00 £5,000.00 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

This is only the Small Community Grants fund.
Due to staff illness there has been no action in this area this quarter.

(JA)  

Number of 
community groups 
received 
community grants 

+ n/a 10 10 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

(JA)  

Number of + n/a 2 3 n/a

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year 
End

Current 
Target

Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 
Act

Q4 
Act

Improvement

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

PIs report 22/23

Again, only the Small Community Grants.
Due to staff illness there has been no action in this area this quarter.

page 35



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

consultations with 
the public carried 
out 

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Green space design proposals

(JA)  

Numbers of people 
assisted by the re-
use and recycle 
furniture 
programme

+ n/a 3 n/a

Management Notes:

Numbers of homes 
retro-fitted using 
Green Homes 
Funding 

+ n/a 0 n/a

Management Notes:

Number of 
homelessness 
approaches

+ n/a 239 489 n/a

Management Notes:

Homelessness 
outcomes –
Number of people 
accessing rent 
deposit and bond 
scheme 

+ n/a 31 56 n/a

Management Notes:

Temporary 
accommodation 
costs Net Costs 

+ n/a £38,533 £42,419 n/a

Management Notes:

Manor Pavilion –
ticket sales

+ n/a £6,727 £5,707 n/a

Management Notes:

Manor Pavilion –
attendance figures 

+ n/a 7,967 5,934 n/a

Management Notes:

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year 
End

Current 
Target

Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 
Act

Q4 
Act

Improvement

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

PIs report 22/23

page 36



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

Total income from 
events

+ n/a 8,397 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Due to a change in software the data for Streetscene is not currently available, howver the tea are working 
with Strata to resovle this. They are also working with the Data Team to look at imrpving data visulisation 
and automation.

(JA)  

Thelma Hulbert 
Gallery school 
visits - groups

+ n/a 5 8 n/a

Management Notes:

Thelma Hulbert 
Gallery school 
visits - attendees

+ n/a 234 384 n/a

Management Notes:

Thelma Hulbert 
Gallery events –
numbers of events 

+ n/a 9 46 n/a

Management Notes:

Thelma Hulbert 
Gallery events –
attendees 

+ n/a 460 1,269 n/a

Management Notes:

NI155 Number of 
affordable homes 
delivered (gross) 
(LAA)

+ 50 (2/4) 7 49 ê

Management Notes:

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year 
End

Current 
Target

Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 
Act

Q4 
Act

Improvement

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Working days lost 
due to sickness 
absence

- 4.96 (7/12) 2.57 5.73 ê

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Services that matter

PIs report 22/23

page 37



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

Management Notes:
(October) 

Sickness absence rates remain above target. This is due to Covid absence and there is also an increase in 
cases of medium and long term absence as a result of personal stress, anxiety and fatigue related to 
bereavement and some staff are expressing concerns with dealing with continued operational demands.  
Additional training has been sourced, funded from the public health budget, to support staff who are 
experiencing mental health difficulties. Sickness absence continues to be actively managed and employees 
are supported in accordance with the Absence Management Policy.

(JA)  

Percentage of 
planning appeal 
decisions allowed 
against the 
authority's 
decision to refuse

- 30.0 (6/12) 20.0 21.5 é

Management Notes:

Percentage of 
Stage 2 complaints 
responded to 
within stated 
timeframes

+ 100 (2/4) 58 20 ê

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Delays in responses in some cases due to complaint volumes and resourcing/workload issues for some 
service teams.

(JA)  

% of minutes and 
audio from council 
meetings uploaded 
together within 5 
working days

+ 100 (2/4) 100 100 çè

Management Notes:

Percentage of FOI 
responded to 
within the statutory 
timelimits

+ 100 (2/4) 98 98 ê

Management Notes:

Total average 
headcount 
(quarterly total)

+ 501 506 é

Management Notes:

Cumulative Staff - 4 8 ê

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Services that matter

PIs report 22/23

page 38



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

Turnover as a 
percentage of all 
staff (voluntary 
leavers)

Management Notes:

Capability at point 
of contact for 
Benefits

+ 74 70 é

Management Notes:

% of residents who 
pay their Council 
Tax by Direct Debit

+ 84 84 é

Management Notes:

Number of Level 2 
complaints (year to 
date)

+ 14 19 ê

Management Notes:

Number of 
Freedom of 
Information 
Requests (year to 
date)

+ 123 233 é

Management Notes:

Number of 
processes live 
through Gov. 
Services 

+ n/a 99 178 n/a

Management Notes:

Number of press 
releases and 
statements 
provided to local 
media outlets 

+ n/a 73 94 n/a

Management Notes:

Number of Power 
BI dashboards 
created 

+ n/a 5 7 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Services that matter

PIs report 22/23

Completed this quarter:
Property - FM Team - Corporate Property Estates Reactive Repair request process

page 39



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

Number of users 
and followers on 
the East Devon 
app

+ n/a 52,803 127,927 n/a

Management Notes:
(Quarter 2) 

35,754 users setup on iOS and 39,533 users setup on Android

(JA)  

Number of users 
and followers on 
Facebook 

+ n/a 8,019 16,860 n/a

Management Notes:

Number of users 
and followers on 
the twitter 

+ n/a 9,441 19,037 n/a

Management Notes:

Number of 
subscribers to our 
residents updates 

+ n/a 12,622 13,102 n/a

Management Notes:

Number of visits to 
our website 

+ n/a 405,719 769,062 n/a

Management Notes:

Percentage of 
licensing 
committee 
members who are 
trained

+ n/a 73 146 n/a

Management Notes:

Percentage of 
planning 
committee 
members trained

+ n/a 100 200 n/a

Management Notes:

Days taken to 
process new 
Housing Benefit 

- 13.00 (7/12) 16.05 18.65 ê

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Services that matter

PIs report 22/23

StreetScene - Fly Tipping (KPI Benchmarking/Historic)? 
In progress

page 40



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

claims

Management Notes:
(October) 

The number of days taken to process new claims and changes has risen as we have had to divert a full time 
member of staff to administer the Homes for Ukraine guests and hosts payments. This has been a 
significant amount of work and is in addition to the on-going high volume of work generated by the cost of 
living crisis and the second household support fund announced by the government. We have also had to 
design and implement the discretionary energy rebate scheme whilst having a number of staff taking their 
summer leave.

We are continuing to work on ensuring Benefit claims are dealt with as quickly as possible and are looking 
at recruiting another member of staff to replace the member of staff dealing with the Homes for Ukraine 
payment applications.

On top of that I need to also raise that - our working age caseload is being reduced due to Housing Costs 
needing to be claimed through Universal Credit. Our working age case load for new claims are now for 
those living in temporary accommodation and specified accommodation. These are much more in depth 
and the specified accommodation cases are requiring further information from landlords some of which is 
not readily available and is taking time to be provided to us. This all results in our new claims for working 
age households taking longer to process than they previously had.

(MC)  

Days taken to 
process changes 
to Housing Benefit 
claims

- 5.50 (7/12) 4.93 6.31 ê

Management Notes:
(October) 

The number of days taken to process new claims and changes has risen as we have had to divert a full time 
member of staff to administer the Homes for Ukraine guests and hosts payments. This has been a 
significant amount of work and is in addition to the on-going high volume of work generated by the cost of 
living crisis and the second household support fund announced by the government. We have also had to 
design and implement the discretionary energy rebate scheme whilst having a number of staff taking their 
summer leave.

We are continuing to work on ensuring Benefit claims are dealt with as quickly as possible and are looking 
at recruiting another member of staff to replace the member of staff dealing with the Homes for Ukraine 
payment applications.

On top of that I need to also raise that - our working age caseload is being reduced due to Housing Costs 
needing to be claimed through Universal Credit. Our working age case load for new claims are now for 
those living in temporary accommodation and specified accommodation. These are much more in depth 
and the specified accommodation cases are requiring further information from landlords some of which is 
not readily available and is taking time to be provided to us. This all results in our new claims for working 
age households taking longer to process than they previously had.

(MC)  

Days taken to 
process local land 

- 5 (2/4) 2 2 é

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Services that matter

PIs report 22/23

page 41



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Tuesday, November 

22, 2022 17:17

charges property 
searches

Management Notes:

Missed bin 
collections per 
1000 households

+ 13 15 ê

Management Notes:

NI157b Percentage 
of Minor planning 
applications 
determined within 
8 weeks

+ 65 (2/4) 64 74 é

Management Notes:

NI157c Percentage 
of Other planning 
applications 
determined within 
8 weeks

+ 80 (2/4) 83 78 é

Management Notes:

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev 

Year End
Current 

Target
Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 

Act
Q4 

Act
Improvement

Priority: Services that matter

Number of 
redundancies (year 
to date)

+ 0 0 ê

Management Notes:

Performance Indicators
Title +/- Prev Year End Current Target Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 Act Q4 Act Improvement

Not linked to any aims

PIs report 22/23

page 42



PRIORITY: Better Homes and Communities

Progress towards 
outcome

Service Plan Objectives - Quarter Two Results 2022/23

1

21

3

3

Number of Measures 
(Total  measures for outcome = 28)  

Achieved On Track Variation No Data

page 43



Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

Annual report for 2022/2023
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priority Better Homes and Communities for All
Filtered by Performance Status: Exclude Objective Status: No Data available

Key to Performance Status:
Key 
Strategic 
Objective: 

Milestone 
Missed

Achieved On track Variation Concern
No Data 
available

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

On 
track

pla-PA-2772 To progress the Local Plan 
in accordance with the 
timetable set out within the 
local development scheme 
and in accordance with 
members aspirations 
outlined in the Council 
Plan including zero carbon 
development, promoting 
walking and cycling, bio-
diversity net gain, 
affordable housing, 
promoting a green and 
resilient economy and the 
diversification of town 
centres.

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

Consultation on the draft local 
plan was launched on 7th 
November. 

On 
track

Cou-PA-2729 Commission and develop a 
Culture Strategy for East 
Devon 2022-32 that sets 
out the vision and aims for 
EDDC’s support for the 
arts & culture sector to be 
adopted by the Council. 
Also:
• Create a database for arts 
organisations across the 
district
• Take forward the Culture 
Strategy Delivery Plan 
seeking cross service 
working with Economic 
Development on areas 
such as cultural tourism 
and place making schemes 
(e.g. Exmouth Cultural 
Quarter).

Countryside, Arts 
and Leisure

Culture Strategy adopted in 
July 2022 by Full Council and 
following achieved:
• Cultural Producer role 
recruitment process to be put 
in place September 2022;
• UK SPF Cultural programme 
approved for £92K over 3 
years that will deliver arts 
digital database; training, 
cultural leadership programme, 
setting up of a Cultural 
Compact for East Devon and 
support for ACED Network;
• Rural England Prosperity 
Fund culture and leisure 
programme approved for 
£430K over 3 years to fund 
capital improvements to help 
cultural and leisure buildings 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 44



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

• Provide support to ACED 
Network

transition to green energy 
infrastructure and improve 
visitor access facilities;

Achieved str-PA-2790 Complete the public toilet 
review as agreed at 
Cabinet to include:
- Delivery of refurbished 
Category A sites with paid 
access.
- Market Cat B & C sites for 
alternative uses, favouring 
community use which 
incorporates a publically 
accessible toilet.
- Complete transfer 
discussions with Town and 
Parish Councils for other 
sites as set out in the 
Cabinet report

StreetScene Review completed and plan for 
Cat A, B and C sites in place, 
Property, Place and Assets 
now leading on the 
implementation of these plans.

On 
track

pla-PA-2780 Continue to collect and 
spend Community 
Infrastructure Levy monies 
to deliver the infrastructure 
needed to support new 
development. 

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

We continue to collect CIL 
payments in accordance with 
the agreed charging schedule. 
We are in the process of 
distributing neighbourhood 
proportions to town and parish 
councils and SPC agreed 
spend priorities earlier in the 
year. 

On 
track

HOU-PA-2763 Continue to develop and 
enhance the Open Housing 
System including the 
change to One Housing in 
order to continually 
improve efficiency and the 
customer’s experience of 
contact with our service. 
To include;
• Introduction of the tenant 
portal
• Data 
transfer/management of 
data: to inform the stock 
condition survey.

Housing Housing Systems Manager 
( currently consultant 
employed to cover this role)_ 
has a work plan that is 
informed by the Leadership 
team to ensure prioritised 
appropriately.

On 
track

HOU-PA-2755 Continue to review and 
monitor outcomes from the 
Homelessness Strategy in 
order to reduce 
homelessness. 

Housing Next Homelessness Strategy 
Review meeting booked for 
07.11.22

On 
track

pla-PA-2781 Continue to work with 
Neighbourhood Planning 
Groups and support them 
delivering Neighbourhood 

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

We have commented on a 
submission draft of the Luppitt 
neighbourhood plan which is 
now moving to a referendum. 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 45



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

Plans that reflect the 
aspirations of their 
community and where 
appropriate support them 
in delivering the growth 
allocated in the plan. 
Number of neighbourhood 
plans we are supporting

We have also commented on a 
submission draft of the 
Broadclyst neighbourhood 
plan. The Kilmington 
neighbourhood plan has also 
been through referendum and 
been made. 

On 
track

HOU-PA-2764 Develop and consult 
tenants on an EDDC Home 
Standard that exceeds the 
Decent Homes Standard 
and that can be applied to 
all homes.

Housing Currently being reviewed 
against requirements of new 
legislation, the national decent 
home standard is under review 
and the Regulator are likely to 
publish this imminently. We 
mustn’t therefore as it stands 
review and create our own 
standard on the basis that 
there will be a new regulation 
requirement on this.

On 
track

HOU-PA-2758 Develop and expand on 
Year 3 of the Integrated 
Asset Management 
Contract to further 
increase customer 
satisfaction. Look to 
implement the first series 
of social value objectives, 
review the Handyperson 
offer and consider the 
inclusion of the planned 
works programme under 
the contract.

Housing Throughout Q1 from all the 
data collected and collated 
Customer Satisfaction remains 
high, 96% and above.
Two Social Value days have 
been held in the District, one in 
Lymebourne Park- Sidmouth 
(26th April 2022) and one at 
Moorhaven, Budleigh Salterton 
(21st July 2022). The next 
event is planned for Honiton 
on the 21st October. An 
updated Social Value Plan is in 
place.
Although continually publicised 
the take for the Handyperson 
Service remains low, at 
present demand is such that it 
does not warrant a full time 
operative.
Planned Works are now being 
delivered under the IAMC 
Contract ranging from 
roof/eaves replacements, 
Kitchen/Bathroom upgrades, 
Climate change Retrofit work 
(fabric first and technologies)

On 
track

Cou-PA-2727 Develop and progress 
recommendations from the 
Leisure & Built Facilities 
Strategy that:
• Provide the framework for 
agreeing the 2023/24 
management fee for LED
• Review of dual use sites

Countryside, Arts 
and Leisure

Full Council adopted the 
Leisure Strategy in July 2022.
LED Forum discussed priority 
1 actions with the Strategy’s 
Delivery Plan and the 
recruitment of Leisure Enabler 
role – key challenges on 
capacity across services for 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 46



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

• Supports the Local Plan 
review specifically in 
sports & leisure policy 
development and Playing 
Pitch Strategy review

meeting timelines especially 
dual use site/schools 
negotiations.

On 
track

EH-PA-2799 Effectiveness of PSPOs Env Health & Car 
Parks

Exmouth The Strand daily 
visits by the police with a 
Street drinking focus Fixed 
penalty notices are 
occasionally issued but most 
interactions conclude with a 
request to move on and 
seizure of alcohol which are 
not reported to the council. 
Effectiveness linked with 
licensing activity has reduced 
the impact presently for street 
drinking in The Strand 
Sidmouth PSPO has been 
used on occasions during this 
period by the local 
neighbourhood team to deal 
with street drinking which 
occurs on an adhoc basis. It is 
still a regularly utilised piece of 
legislation to deal with this 
element when it occurs in 
Sidmouth

Variation HOU-PA-2801 Embrace and prepare for 
the changes anticipated in 
the Building Safety Act, 
including the appointment 
of Building Safety 
Managers.

Housing Much of the work we carry out 
embraces the property 
element requirements of the 
Building Safety Act but there is 
still a way to go particularly 
with Housing 
Management/Tenant 
engagement; the appointment 
of a Building Safety Manager 
has not progressed.

On 
track

HOU-PA-2757 Ensure that the Key 
Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) for the Integrated 
Asset Management 
Contract are closely 
monitored and standards 
set are met or exceeded.

Housing KPI’s are monitored monthly at 
the Operational Group 
Meetings and quarterly at the 
Core Group (high level 
Governance) Meetings; there 
are concerns in some areas 
but monitoring remains on 
track.
KPIS relating directly to 
responsive repairs all saw 
improved performance for the 
first quarter of 22/23 compared 
to Q4 of 21/22.

On 
track

HOU-PA-2759 Implement a robust 
process for dealing with 

Housing Property & Asset have work 
extensively with colleagues in 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 47



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

Disrepair Claims, ensuring 
that this is embedded into 
all team processes. Meet 
the requirements of the 
Homes Fitness for Human 
Habitation Act.

Legal to formulate a process 
for the management of 
Disrepair claims, this is an 
ongoing process and subject 
to further improvement. Legal 
outsource all disrepair work to 
Trowers currently.

Concern HOU-PA-2756 Improve void turnaround 
times and review the Void 
Standard for properties 
being re-let as part of our 
Price Per Void contract, 
and ensure that a suitable 
lettable standard is 
achieved for new tenants 
achieving ‘right first time’. 

Housing Completion of Voids within 
Target is a concern, 
performance in months 1 and 
3 of Q2 was poor although 
there was improvement in 
month 2; void completion time 
in days was poor in months 1 
and 2 but there was 
improvement in month 3, this 
improvement is continuing into 
Q2. In light of the concern a 
full Void review led by external 
consultants, Echelon has been 
commissioned and have 
commenced work.

On 
track

P&E-PA-2773 Following on from Public 
Toilet Review advise on 
options and manage the 
disposal of surplus public 
convenience stock. 

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

Transfer of CAT B&C sites is 
progressing well. Of those 
sites that have been marketed 
a number have now resulted in 
offers coming forward for the 
re-purposing of the sites but 
with a retained accessible 
toilet provision. Those sites 
that have generated less 
interest will now be marketed 
through an external agent but 
still with an ongoing accessible 
toilet desire. Discussions with 
Town and Parishes also 
progressing but positive 
responses are slower than 
envisaged. Regular reporting 
to Cabinet members. CAT A 
investment works project will 
be progressed once Project 
Manager is appointed in early 
October.

On 
track

EEP-PA-2749 Progress work to develop a 
business case for a 
delivery vehicle (up to and 
including the 
establishment of a 
Development Corporation) 
to support major 
development proposals 
and the implementation of 
the new Local Plan by 

Growth, 
Development and 
Prosperity Service

Progress work to develop a 
business case for a delivery 
vehicle (up to and including the 
establishment of a 
Development Corporation) to 
support major development 
proposals and the 
implementation of the new 
Local Plan by March 2023.

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 48



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

March 2023.

Concern HOU-PA-2761 Recruit and support the 
development of our 
Compliance team that will 
sit within the Property and 
Asset team. Ensure the 
Compliance Manager is 
supported to ensure 
appropriate resourcing and 
focus to embed and 
develop the new team.
Embrace and prepare for 
the changes anticipated in 
the Building Safety Act, 
including the appointment 
of Building Safety 
Managers.
Review compliance 
procedures by an external 
body to drive continuous 
improvement.

Housing Recruitment remains a 
challenge; at present we have 
recruited into the 
Administrative roles and one 
Surveyor role, asbestos and 
radon (the Surveyor has not 
yet started with us

Variation HOU-PA-2765 Refresh and clearly define 
our offer of sheltered 
accommodation ensuring 
clarity and a commitment 
to the levels of support 
that can be offered.

Housing Currently we have two Interim 
Managers in post (previously 1 
managers and 2 seniors). 
Therefore this work has been 
deferred to 23/24

On 
track

HOU-PA-2754 Refresh the Housing 
Revenue Account 
Business Plan, 
incorporating a review of 
our approach to delivering 
affordable housing with the 
aspiration of building more 
Council housing, as well as 
delivering climate change 
actions and new building 
safety requirements. 

Housing Currently seeking Consultancy 
support to assist us with 
delivery of this. We need to 
assess carefully retrofit 
requirements of current stock 
in order to determine the level 
of investment we are willing to 
make versus the opportunity to 
re-develop stock or potentially 
look at complete regeneration.

Concern HOU-PA-2802 Review compliance 
procedures by an external 
body to drive continuous 
improvement

Housing Currently there is no rogress 
on this as recruitment remains 
an issue.

On 
track

HOU-PA-2762 Review the Service against 
the Social Housing 
Regulators Standards and 
ensure that we are fully 
compliant.
Establish and publicise the 
roles and responsibilities 
required under the White 
Paper and Building Safety 
Act including who tenants 
needs to report fire safety 

Housing The Housing Projects Officer is 
currently overseeing a work 
plan and self-assessment 
exercise to determine work 
required moving forward.
Policy review underway in a 
number of areas to ensure 
compliance with regulatory 
requirements.

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 49



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

concerns to.
Deliver training to 
Members, tenants and staff 
to ensure they have a full 
understanding of the 
legislative requirements of 
the White Paper and 
Building Safety Act as well 
as having the required 
skillset and levels of 
competency as defined in 
the Legislation to 
discharge such 
roles/duties.

On 
track

HOU-PA-2797 Support the work of the 
newly established Housing 
Task Force in order to 
increase our housing 
stock.

Housing Joint working underway, 
update report presented to the 
Housing Review Board on the 
11th October 2022.

On 
track

Cou-PA-2728 THG to manage the Arts 
and Culture East Devon 
(ACED) Network:
Which serves the 
communities of East 
Devon and providing a 
central platform to engage, 
network, promote and talk 
about arts and culture 
across the region. Grow 
membership and deliver 
networking and training 
events

Countryside, Arts 
and Leisure

Held two ACED meetings. 
There are now 400 members.

On 
track

pla-PA-2782 To determine planning 
applications for the 
expansion at Cranbrook 
and secure the range of 
uses needed to create the 
vibrant town envisaged by 
policy. 

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

We have issued consents for a 
large part of the proposed 
town centre and work has 
started on the supermarket. 

On 
track

pla-PA-2785 To implement upcoming 
changes to building 
regulations including new 
Part L requirements when 
introduced including 
ensuring all surveyors are 
suitably trained. 

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

The new legislation has been 
published and started to take 
affect from June. Surveyors 
have been fully trained and are 
implementing the 
requirements. 

On 
track

pla-PA-2783 To provide a responsive 
and pro-active dangerous 
structures service to 
ensure that action is taken 
against any dangerous 
structures in a timely 
manner for 24/7, 365 days a 

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

We continue to do this

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 50



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:50

year.
How many of these reports 
are we investigating

Variation pla-PA-2784 To report on our delivery of 
high quality new and 
improved play areas, open 
spaces and sports pitches 
funded from development 
proposals.

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

Lack of staff resources due to 
absence has delayed work on 
this area. 

On 
track

HOU-PA-2760 Undertake a complete 
review of the Home 
Safeguard service, to 
include;
• Future growth and 
marketing strategy
• Review of office 
accommodation and 
location of the service.
• Review of staffing to 
include provision of 
whether we continue to 
manage the service 24/7.
• Review of management 
resources to ensure 
business continuity.
• Review of corporate 
contracts to ensure all 
requirements can and are 
being met.

Housing Growth – Business case and 
Marketing strategy being 
developed, aiming to report to 
SMT+ early December ready 
for progression through 
Cabinet.
Office Relocation – SMT+ 
agreed for HSG to remain at 
BDH. Specification rewritten 
and agreed by YM, TC is now 
considering options as part of 
the overall WorkSmart Review

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Better Homes and Communities for All

Service Plan Objectives - Better Homes and Communities

page 51



Appendix B

PRIORITY: Greener East Devon 

Progress towards 
outcome

Service Plan Objectives - Quarter Two Results 2022/23

4%

34%

0%2%

50%

2

17

5

1

Number of Measures 
(Total  measures for outcome = 25)  

Achieved On Track Variation No data Concern

page 52



Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

Annual report for 2022/2023
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priority Greener East Devon
Filtered by Performance Status: Exclude Objective Status: No Data available

Key to Performance Status:
Key 
Strategic 
Objective: 

Milestone 
Missed

Achieved On track Variation Concern
No Data 
available

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

Variation str-PA-2794 Complete the draft 
amenity plan to detail how 
we can better manage our 
beach amenity asset and 
how we can improve it for 
the future; incorporating 
health & wellbeing 
opportunities, carbon 
reduction and links to the 
Green Space Plan Beach 
& Foreshore policies 1-8, 
and Beach Management 
Plans (where appropriate).

StreetScene Draft plan in development, 1 st 
draft has been written and is 
now being refined and 
expanded before discussion 
with PHs.

Concern str-PA-2796 Complete the Play 
Strategy linked to our 
adopted Green Space Plan 
with an action plan to 
improve outdated sites, 
ensure appropriate 
provision, introduce play 
space and ‘play along the 
way’ micro parks by 
September 2022

StreetScene Strategy has been largely 
completed, but required minor 
updates, however the senior 
engineer delivering the work 
has been on long term sick, so 
the strategy has not progressed 
with a report through cabinet. 
No spare resource with other 
team members to push forward

Variation HOU-PA-2767 Continue to work with 
Countryside colleagues to 
implement Phase 2 of the 
#inhoniton project by 
working with tenants in 
Honiton to identify areas 
we can manage differently 
and re-wild. 
Identify Housing land for 
Nature Recovery 
Networks, re-wilding and 
wildlife improvement 
corridors and liaise with 

Housing #InHoniton was led by 
Countryside and it has not as 
yet restarted after lockdown.

At least 3 Blue Heart Areas 
were agreed and established, 
with Littleham residents via the 
Littleham Greenspaces 
Partnership in 2019. We are 
rebuilding links with tenants to 
receive up to date information 
on whether these continue to 
be managed in the agreed way 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 53



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

tenants to deliver blue 
heart areas. 
SWITCH groups to focus 
on climate changes issues 
and to encourage learning 
and appreciation of the 
natural world. The 
educational element links 
to our carbon reduction 
commitments.

since Streetscene management 
has changed. The rewilded, 
blue heart area on Littleham 
Crescent looks beautiful and 
good progress has been made.

SWITCH has not been 
restarted since Covid. 

Area-based community 
development Plans which make 
the best use of resources in 
response to need will be in 
place by April ’23. 

On 
track

Cou-PA-2732 Deliver new visitor 
infrastructure to Seaton 
Wetlands to enhance 
visitor experience and 
monetise the increased 
footfall: 
• Creation of a café offer –
concessionary 
arrangement (Black Hole 
Marsh hub) 
• Installation of 
contactless payment 
points and car park 
machine for donations 
• Resurface and 
reimagined car area for 
visitor 
information/welcome 
• Increased septic tank 
capability for public toilets 

Countryside, Arts 
and Leisure

Café has been refreshed and 
has an excellent summer 
trading period with record 
numbers of visitors to the 
Wetlands;

Contactless donations will be in 
the car park later in 2022;

Resurfacing of the car park is 
planned for September/October 
2022 (contractor availability 
dependent)

Septic tank is under review 

On 
track

Cou-PA-2731 Delivery of Wild Honiton 
project as a local Nature 
Recovery Network pilot: 
• Target green space 
improvements to existing 
EDDC green spaces –
wildlife, access and 
recreational 
enhancements; 
• Develop new 
volunteering 
opportunities; 
• Develop links to 
Honiton’s GP referral and 
social prescribing 
programme; 
• Activate discussions 
with neighbouring 
landowners to improve 

Countryside, Arts 
and Leisure

A Wild Honiton consultation 
meeting with all the key 
stakeholders has been set for 
31 October to agree the 
programme, timelines and 
budget for the delivery of the 
scheme.

Defra access payments to be 
use for footpath connections on 
Knapp Copse/East Devon Way.

Countryside team & Forestry 
Commission are meeting to 
discuss the future management 
of Offwell.

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 54



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

access and circular walks. 

• Develop engagement 
activities including art and 
activity trails and link 
green spaces with town 
centre through these 
trails. 

On 
track

pla-PA-2787 Develop a mitigation 
strategy for phosphate 
levels arising from 
development affecting the 
River Axe.

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

We continue to work to 
understand the projects that are 
in development to help to 
deliver mitigation and are 
working closely with partners at 
other authorities, the AONB 
team, Natural England and 
other agencies. We hope to 
receive funding from DLUHC 
shortly that will enable us to 
recruit a catchment officer who 
can be dedicated to addressing 
these issues. 

On 
track

pla-PA-2786 Develop an updated 
mitigation strategy to 
address the impacts of 
development on the Exe 
Estuary and Pebblebed 
Heaths arising from the 
new developments 
proposed in the new Local 
Plan 

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

Consultants continue to work 
developing a revised strategy to 
accompany the new local plan. 

On 
track

HOU-PA-2770 Develop the Fairshare 
project working with 
Supermarkets in the 
district and Nourish to 
collect food from the 
supermarket, cook and 
freeze it, and distribute to 
people with an identified 
need. Aim to do more for 
rural areas and link with 
other work e.g. new 
applicants for Universal 
Credit who have limited 
income for the first six 
weeks.

Housing We still collect food from 4 
supermarkets each week and 
deliver the food to tenants 
mainly in Axminster but now we 
have also set up a distribution 
network for local food providers 
to supplement what they are 
collecting and provide support 
to more tenants around the 
district. This food is bought 
from FareShare’s Bristol depot, 
via Exeter Food Action, to our 
base at St Pauls flat in Honiton 
where 3 providers – Broadclyst 
foodbank, Honiton Foodsave 
and Ottery Community Larder –
collect their share. Deliveries 
are also made to Sidmouth 
Foodbank, Littleham 
Community fridge and Open 
Door in Exmouth. This scheme 
will be 1 year old in 2 weeks.
Any excess food is offered to 
residents of the Millwey estate 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 55



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

and St Pauls to help reduce 
food waste. Several useful 
conversations with tenants we 
had not previously worked with 
have come from this part of the 
work.
Conversations with tenants 
have resulted in referrals to 
mental health support, the 
Resilience team and CAB.
Nourish is now working from 
the Guildhall in Axminster – to 
allow Karen to maintain her 
work after community centres 
were closed during the 
pandemic – but she is part of 
our food network so still 
receiving support and was 
recently invited to talk to Cllr 
Ledger about the work she 
does in Axminster.
Questionnaires were sent out to 
map the rural food networks at 
the beginning of the year and to 
ask if any support was needed 
in the parishes. They will be 
sent out again at the beginning 
of next year to ensure the 
information we hold and share 
with partners is kept up to date. 
We have a similar map of food 
support in the towns.
We work closely with EMs, 
MSOs, Rentals and Resilience, 
as well as external 
professionals to offer support to 
maintain tenancies and make 
sure tenants are able to feed 
themselves and their families.

On 
track

Cou-PA-2730 District Ecologist to work 
with Planning Policy team 
to develop Local Plan 
policy that provide 
guidance on Biodiversity 
Net Gain targets for 
development proposals 
that meet the criteria laid 
out in the Environment 
Act 2022

Countryside, Arts 
and Leisure

District Ecologist has drafted 
Biodiversity Net Gain policy for 
the local plan consultation in 
October with work to do viability 
testing 

On 
track

HOU-PA-2766 Ensure that housing 
repairs and improvement 
contractors are actively 
reducing their carbon 
footprints when 

Housing The Contractor is targeted to 
deliver right repair first time but 
there is always room for 
improvement, this is closely 
monitored through the KPI 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 56



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

performing work on 
Council homes. This 
includes efficient work 
scheduling, right first time 
repairs etc

process. Throughout Q1 the 
number of repairs completed in 
target has increased month on 
month, this needs to continue

On 
track

fin-PA-2737 Implement online services 
via Firmstep including 
automation to reduce the 
amount of paper bills 
issued and to create more 
efficient ways of working. 
This will include: 
- Self-service / e-billing
- Exploring moving more 
benefit letters to go via 
self-service.
- Online benefit changes 
of circs form
- Move in /move out form 
for Business rates 
changes
- Contact us form for 
council tax, business 
rates and general CSC 
matters (replace emails ) 
- SBRR claim form 
- Common financial 
statement claim form 
- scretionary housing 
payment form.
We will measure the 
efficiencies and paper 
savings this will create. 

Finance

On 
track

str-PA-2793 Improve our sustainable 
management of green 
spaces/rewilding to help 
protect the environment 
and meet Climate Change 
Action Plan aims. Building 
on our adopted Green 
Space Plan Natural Green 
Space Policies 1 and 
Nature Recovery Network 
approach

StreetScene 50+ sites greenspaces inc 
verges left to grow as meadow 
grass Apr-Oct 
Social Media and Comms 
releases to publicise our 
approach
Website updated to publicise 
approach
5 sites now mapped, with the 
rest in progress
Renaturing strategy being 
drafted for release in early 2023
2 new friends of group formed, 
with a further 3 planned in 2023
Emergency tree fund planning 
underway which will see the 
planting of circa 2000+ trees on 
EDDC land
22, 965 sustainable perennials 
planted in 2021.
A further 11,000 so far in 2023

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 57



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

On 
track

P&E-PA-2774 Contribute to the 
reduction of the Council’s 
carbon footprint and zero 
carbon targets by 
improving energy 
efficiency of the council’s 
property assets via 
already identified capital 
improvement works and 
the appointment of a 
specialist energy 
consultant to review the 
current building asset 
stock and make 
recommendations.

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

Ongoing

On 
track

str-PA-2792 Increase the use of 
renewable technology 
within Streetscene for 
mechanical equipment 
and the Council vehicle 
fleet through the energy 
fleet plan by 2023.
- Plan to reach 32% 
electric In StreetScene by 
2022.

StreetScene We have now completed the 
staff changes required for the 
Fleet & Equipment Manager. 
This role will now allow 
progress with this objective. 
Research into alternative 
technologies, including demos 
of EV vehicles, sweeper and 
RCVs continues with a view to 
completing a fleet plan and 
allowing purchase of these 
types of vehicles over the next 
few years.
White fleet is now at 32% 
electric. 
EV charging strategy for the 
District is still required and to 
be worked up between our 
Fleet Manager, Car Parks 
Manager and Climate Change 
Officer. Currently reviewing 
DCC EV charging strategy 
consultation to ensure our work 
dovetails with this. 

On 
track

HOU-PA-2768 Invest in the improvement 
of the communal areas on 
housing estates, including 
tree planting and 
encouraging a greater 
diversity of wildlife 
through rewilding and 
nature recovery corridors.

Housing The trees planted on Higher 
Brook Meadow Green in 
February 2022 have continued 
to thrive, and in the current 
quarter a community day in the 
new orchard was successful
Tenants are very keen to 
restart the Littleham 
Greenspaces Partnership but 
staffing shortages have not 
allowed that 
We have 3 further projects, 
requested by tenants, which 
are in process. These are in 
Seaton, Broadclyst and 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 58



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

Millway. Planting isn’t viable 
during the summer and work 
will be resumed now the 
weather is turning colder. This 
work is being led by the 
Communities team in 
collaboration with Countryside, 
EMs, MSOs and Streetscene.

Achieved fin-PA-2734 A new Procurement 
Strategy is to be prepared 
for member approval by 
September 2022 which will 
emphasise the Council’s 
object to be Carbon 
Neutral by 2040 and will 
include a shift in 
procurement practices to 
support this.

Finance This has now been adopted.

Variation str-PA-2791 On-street Recycling 
- Continue phasing 
in/incrementally increase 
the provision of on-street 
recycling bins alongside 
implementation of bin lift 
vehicles.
- Monitor DRS from 
Environment Act and 
assess how to adapt our 
service provision.

StreetScene Limited progress due to staffing 
and recruitment focus. 
However a further 4 on-street 
recycling bins have been 
installed in partnership with 
town councils

On 
track

str-PA-2795 Prepare for Environment 
Act changes; Extended 
producer responsibility, 
Deposit Return Scheme 
and Consistent Recycling 
Collection requirements.
Recycling & Waste 
Collection service 
contract – investigate and 
report to Cabinet & 
Council on options for the 
‘Bridging Solution’ 
contract uplift of around 
£1.2mil to account for 
tonnage and property 
increase (above 73k).

StreetScene The bridging solution was 
approved through Cabinet and 
Council with £1.2million of 
additional resource funding 
being attributed to the growth 
zones to enable effective and 
high quality collection services 
to continue to the growing 
population which had exceeded 
the tipping points allowed for 
within the contract.
A successful mobilisation of 
phase 1 of the growth zone was 
implemented in October.

Achieved fin-PA-2736 Produce a digital strategy 
for members’ 
consideration and 
approval by May 2022. 
Work across the Council 
with digital leads and 
services to provide an 

Finance Strategy adopted

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 59



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

improved digital service 
for customers and create 
efficiencies for the 
Council. Measures to be 
defined but will include 
reduction in paper usage.

On 
track

EEP-PA-2750 Progress the Clyst 
Canopy bond work to 
increase canopy cover in 
the CVRP utilising funding 
from the Natural 
Environment Investment 
Readiness Fund by March 
2023
• Consider how this could 
be replicated over a larger 
area
• Continue to support 
projects that will deliver 
increased canopy cover in 
the West End. 

Growth, 
Development and 
Prosperity Service

Clyst Canopy work progressing 
toward a conclusion including 
engagement with 
landowners/farmers. Financial 
mechanisms to invest in 
projects now being explored. 

On 
track

LGL-PA-2743 Provide timely advice and 
support in relation to site 
acquisitions / repurposing 
to support provision of 
affordable housing and 
related processes 
(internal with external 
resource where required). 

Governance and 
Licensing Services

The legal department provide 
timely advice and support. One 
site has been identified and 
actively pursued. 

On 
track

P&E-PA-2803 Quantify the carbon 
footprint of corporately 
occupied buildings ie, 
corporate offices, depots, 
leisure centres, public 
toilets and others by April 
2023. 

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

Ongoing work

Variation fin-PA-2735 Revised Investment 
strategy to incorporate 
good practice in terms 
meeting the Council’s 
objective of being carbon 
neutral by 2040

Finance Early adoption of all aspects of 
new code has been delayed 
due to staff shortages. Adoption 
is required for 2023/24.

On 
track

Cou-PA-2733 Tree team to develop a 
Tree Strategy that sets out 
the framework for 
engaging with climate 
change, tree wardening 
and community 
engagement and tackling 
pests and diseases. 

Countryside, Arts 
and Leisure

EDDC has entered into a 
collaboration with Woodland 
Trust and other Devon local 
authorities to develop a Devon 
wide strategy with further work 
on specific east devon 
elements once this has been 
developed. Funding secured 
and Spring 2023 is target for 
draft Devon tree strategy.

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 60



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:52

Variation HOU-PA-2769 Undertake a review of the 
use of paper across the 
service with a view to 
eliminating unnecessary 
use. Teams have 
identified practices that 
could be reviewed to 
eliminate the use of paper 
in some areas.

Housing Not deemed a current priority in 
relation to other more urgent 
climate change objectives.

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Greener East Devon

Service Plan Objectives - Greener East Devon

page 61



PRIORITY: Resilient Economy

Progress towards 
outcome

Service Plan Objectives - Quarter Two Results 2022/23

8

3

Number of Measures 
(Total  measures for outcome = 11)  

Achieved On Track Variation No Data Blank

page 62



Service Plan Objectives - A resilient economy

Annual report for 2022/2023
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priority A Resilient Economy
Filtered by Performance Status: Exclude Objective Status: No Data available

Key to Performance Status:
Key 
Strategic 
Objective: 

Milestone 
Missed

Achieved On track Variation Concern
No Data 
available

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:53

Variation fin-PA-2739 Approved Corporate Fraud & 
Compliance Strategy which will 
include a timetable of priority 
areas for review which will 
reflect the high risk areas of 
lost income. July 2022 for A&G
This will include the timetable 
for carrying out the following 
reviews:
- Single Person Discount review
- Small Business Rate Relief 
review
- Comparing data sets of 
council assets against 
Business rates & sundry debt 
systems to ensure income 
maximised.
- Missing business rates 
income 
- Other high risk areas of fraud.
The outcomes of these reviews 
will provide a minimum of 
£100K in additional income to 
the Council through non -
compliance of the above.

Finance We are slightly behind in 
this work as we have 
focussed on the various 
Covid Grants

On 
track

EEP-PA-2752 Commission, develop and 
secure endorsement for a 
tourism strategy for the District 
with an emphasis on 
supporting sustainable tourism 
and ensuring alignment with 
the Cultural Development 
Strategy;
• Engage with key stakeholders 
and partners
• Ensure that there is a clear 

Growth, 
Development and 
Prosperity Service

The new Tourism 
Strategy for East Devon 
was developed between 
May and Sept and was 
approved by Cabinet on 
the 7th September 2022. 
This followed extensive 
engagement with local 
stakeholders. 
Work is now underway to 
commission an external 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: A Resilient Economy

Service Plan Objectives - A resilient economy

page 63



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:53

implementation plan
• Utilise impetus provided by 
place marketing campaign 
funded through the Welcome 
Back Fund 

partner to develop and 
deliver a new East Devon 
Tourism Network. EDDC 
will continue in its agreed 
role, supporting the sector 
as an enabler.

Variation P&E-PA-2776 We will work with the 
neighbouring landowner to 
deliver a masterplan for the 
Hayne Lane site in Honiton 
December 2023 - spoke to 
planning re this one 

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

Masterplan almost 
finalised. Consultation 
intended for November / 
December 2022 before 
report back to Cabinet. 
Identified viability issues.

On 
track

LGL-PA-2744 Ensure review of street trading 
regime arrangements by March 
2023.

Governance and 
Licensing Services

Approval to consult on the 
policy will be raised in 
November at Licensing 
Committee. 

On 
track

P&E-PA-2779 Seaton Jurassic – Conclude 
how best to deal with the 
building defect issues and 
alongside let / sell to ensure the 
site is continued to use in some 
form or another. By March 2023

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

A Cabinet report setting 
out options is timetabled 
for 5th October before a 
recommendation is then 
made to Council.

On 
track

fin-PA-2738 Implement financial support 
measures due to impact of 
Covid-19. 
- Omicron hospitality and 
leisure grant scheme 
(announced December 2021. 
Implement new claim form, 
develop policy, award grants to 
eligible businesses. – Closed
- Carry out grant fraud 
assurance work – pre & post. 
October2022
- Test and Trace Payment 
Scheme – providing financial 
support for those needing to 
self –isolate – Closed October 
2023
- CARF (Covid Additional Relief 
Fund) announced 15 December 
2021. Model and design scheme 
policy to ensure that we target 
government funding effectively 
£2.1 – October 2022 ensure we 
have used all gov funding 
- Financial Hardship Schemes –
October 2022
- Government Energy Rebate 
scheme – Main scheme grant 
used by October 2022 
Discretionary scheme funding 
used by November 2022

Finance All schemes have been 
updated in line with the 
required timescales.

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: A Resilient Economy

Service Plan Objectives - A resilient economy

page 64



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:53

On 
track

P&E-PA-2778 We will consider how the 
regeneration of the Queen’s 
Drive site along with other 
place making opportunities 
across Exmouth can support 
economic recovery and 
prosperity whilst enabling 
Exmouth to capitalise on its 
natural capital and to ensure a 
consistent place making theme 
across the town. Options will 
be developed and presented to 
Members for a decision on 
which projects to take forward.

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

The Remit of the EQDDG 
was expanded on the 8th 
of June 2022. 
A Public consultation 
process was completed 
over the summer 2022 to 
hear the views on 
placemaking from 
members and the public 
alike.
The Consultation 
outcomes were accepted 
by Cabinet on the 2nd 
Nov. 2022. Approval was 
also given (subject to Full 
Council’s budget 
Approval) to appoint 
consultants in Dec 2022 
to develop the 
placemaking plan

On 
track

EEP-PA-2753 Support the development of a 
sustainable aviation cluster 
focused on Exeter Airport in 
line with the ambition set out in 
the Local Industrial Strategy;
• Work in conjunction with the 
LEP to develop a High Potential 
Opportunity offer and to 
provide representation on the 
Sustainable Aviation 
Programme Board
• Support the 2Zero electric 
flight project

Growth, 
Development and 
Prosperity Service

The LEP have established 
a programme board 
specifically focused on 
sustainable aviation upon 
which EDDC is 
represented. The LEP 
have also commissioned 
research which confirms 
Exeter Airport’s potential 
role as a hub within a 
wider research and 
development corridor. 

On 
track

EEP-PA-2751 Throughout 2022/23 develop 
the infrastructure needed to 
support our local economy, 
including transport and 
housing.
• Lead work to understand the 
infrastructure needs of further 
major development in the West 
End of the District
• Engage with utility companies 
to understand potential 
capacity issues and work to 
influence investment plans

Growth, 
Development and 
Prosperity Service

Engagement ongoing with 
utility companies including 
WPD to understand 
potential constraints and 
what would be needed to 
overcome these. Work 
underway to understand 
infrastructure 
requirements related to a 
second new town. 

Variation P&E-PA-2777 We will deliver new beach huts 
at Jacobs Ladder in Sidmouth 
to replace the current 
provision. 

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

Decision made by 
Members to defer these 
for another year. These 
will now be progressed 
through the capital 
programme with works 
commencing in autumn 
2023. To be picked up by 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: A Resilient Economy

Service Plan Objectives - A resilient economy

page 65



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 13:53

the Property and Facilities 
Management Team 

On 
track

P&E-PA-2775 We will support the review of 
town centre economy and 
prosperity through the work 
that we are doing with 
consultants on the Axe Valley 
project and the Devon Place 
Board work e.g. exploring the 
feasibility of repurposing retail 
retail/commercial. 

Place, Assets & 
Commercialisation 
Service

Work continues with the 2 
forums for Axminster and 
Seaton, with the Devon 
Place Board work. 
Regeneration Strategies 
currently being finalised 
and quick win projects 
and Business case 
projects being identified. 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: A Resilient Economy

Service Plan Objectives - A resilient economy

page 66



Services Matter

Progress towards 
outcome

Service Plan Objectives - Quarter Two Results 2022/23

2

7

3

1

Number of Measures 
(Total  measures for outcome = 13)  

Achieved On track Variation No Data Concern Blank

page 67



page 68



Service Plan Objectives - Services that matter

Annual report for 2022/2023
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priority Services that matter
Filtered by Performance Status: Exclude Objective Status: Milestone Missed, No Data 

available

Key to Performance Status:
Key 
Strategic 
Objective: 

Milestone 
Missed

Achieved On track Variation Concern
No Data 
available

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 14:04

On 
track

EH-PA-2655 Apprenticeship Scheme
Following difficulties 
experienced this year in 
recruiting suitably qualified 
and experienced 
Environmental Health Officers 
and managers, we will explore 
the option of investing in a 
new apprentice 
Environmental Health Officer 
post.

Env Health & Car 
Parks

This is being considered by 
EDDC and other Devon 
Districts. There is an 
intention to recruit an EDDC 
apprentice in time for a 
September enrolment at 
Weston College alongside 
other District Council 
apprentices and a shared 
Devon-wide training 
programme will be 
developed via the Devon 
Chief EHO’s group.

On 
track

LGL-PA-2747 By February conduct 
thorough planning exercise 
and risk assessments for 
2023 elections – particularly 
in relation to any residual 
COVID issues

Governance and 
Licensing Services

Work is underway in terms 
of preparing for May 2023.

On 
track

LGL-PA-2748 By summer 2022 complete a 
review of approach to Council 
meetings (virtual / hybrid / 
normal - including issues 
such as electronic voting, 
speaker queuing, webcasting)

Governance and 
Licensing Services

This is underway and a 
report is required for 
December Council

Achieved EH-PA-2662 Subject to the outcome of the 
car parks Task and Finish 
Forum we propose to 
increase our car parking fees 
and charges during 2021. The 
majority of our charges have 
not been increased since 2010 
and some have been reduced 
significantly and over that 

Env Health & Car 
Parks

Completed – Cabinet 
decision.

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Services that matter

Service Plan Objectives - Services that matter

page 69



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 14:04

period we have not passed on 
the increase in VAT (from 15% 
to 17.5% to 20%). 

On 
track

fin-PA-2741 Carry out a review of 
telephony within the CSC. 
This will include reviewing 
management data to consider 
how we can better automate 
the routing of calls, dynamic 
automated messages, 
promotion of online services, 
etc. Alongside this we will 
carry out more data captures 
and use this analysis to 
inform improvements to 
service delivery including 
online services. Report to 
SMT March 2023.
Action plan to follow the 
review

Finance

On 
track

pla-PA-2788 Continue to work in 
partnership with our 
neighbouring authorities 
within the Greater Exeter area 
on a non-statutory strategic 
plan for the area.

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

Work continues on a joint 
non-statutory plan to 
identify a joint vision and 
addressed shared 
infrastructure issues and 
provide support for bids to 
government. 

On 
track

EH-PA-2653 Corporate Health and Safety

• We will plan to deliver a 
corporate Health & Safety 
training programme across all 
council services, and 
accurately recorded training 
undertaken.
• We will oversee an annual 
review of risk assessment 
documents to ensure that all 
work activities are covered by 
a risk assessment that is 
effective in mitigating risks.
• We will review our 
arrangements for ensuring 
lone worker safety 
arrangements to be sure that 
they are robust and are being 
applied consistently 
throughout the organisation.
• We will carry out checks to 
verify that higher risk 
activities in frontline services 
continue to be well managed 
with a Safety First approach.
• We will review staff training 

Env Health & Car 
Parks

Corporate training plan 
identified, training 
undertaken to be recorded 
by Service Administrators. 
SMT asked to nominate 
Service Administrators, and 
presently awaiting response 
from Planning, Building 
Control and Countryside.
Annual risk assessment 
review suspended during 
pandemic and just being 
restarted to incorporate the 
Covid assessments in to the 
standard risk assessments 
going forward. High risk 
activities in StreetScene 
have all been reviewed this 
year. 
Lone working review 
overdue.
Audits for higher risk 
activates to confirm 
adherence to Safe Systems 
of Work yet to be carried 
out. 
Awaiting appropriate 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Services that matter

Service Plan Objectives - Services that matter

page 70



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 14:04

needs to identify whether 
anyone needs update training 
in our heath and safety 
essentials and that everyone 
knows what to do when: 
driving for work; engaged in 
manual handling; dealing with 
aggression; participating in a 
fire evacuation; awareness of 
electrical safety issues in the 
workplace etc.
• We will ensure that all staff 
including seasonal and 
temporary workers have a 
safe place to work in the 
office, at home and on-site.

Service Safety 
Administrators to ensure 
training records up to date 
and enable review of 
overdue training need.
DSE assessment reminders 
issued, office procedures 
reviewed and COVID 
dynamic risk assessment 
for site visits reviewed.

On 
track

LGL-PA-2746 Progress the Member 
Development Working Group 
and complete review of 
Member Development / 
Training and the Member 
Induction Programme to 
inform preparation for May 
2023.

Governance and 
Licensing Services

The MDWP has been 
meeting throughout 2022. 
An Induction & training 
programme to informMay 
2023 has been drafted and 
needs further development. 
A Members' Training 
Survey has been carried 
out, and a report will be 
presented to Scrutiny Cttee 
in Decmenber by the 
Portfolio Holder.

Variation LGL-PA-2742 Review of Taxi Policy to help 
seek to meet climate change 
targets, to reduce emissions 
and incorporating the national 
standards recommended by 
the Department of Transport.

Governance and 
Licensing Services

Timescales for preparation 
of the revised (draft) policy 
have been delayed due to 
the impact on officer time 
delivering 2 Licensing 
Committees for 2 reviews 
taxi fares this year. 

Concern LGL-PA-2745 Revising the Cemetery 
Regulations to ensure an 
updated and fit for purpose 
regime for burials by Dec 
2022.

Governance and 
Licensing Services

Timescales for delivery 
have been delayed due to 
the significant 
impact/demands of taxi 
fares reviews twice in 2022.
Aim to finalise draft in Nov 
22 to consult early 2023 

Variation pla-PA-2789 To work on the transfer of 
data from the Local Land 
Charges system for the 
national LLC1 implantation by 
the Land Registry.

Planning Strategy 
and Development 
Management

Work continues on data 
cleansing in readiness for 
the hand over of elements 
of the local search to land 
registry with this timetabled 
for March 2023. 

Variation fin-PA-2740 Undertake the statutory 
requirement of producing the 
2021/22 Statement of 
Accounts, incorporating new 
accounting standards and 

Finance Delay in completion of 
2020/21 Statement of 
Accounts and subsequent 
delay to 2021/22 due to 
nationally consulted 

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Services that matter

Service Plan Objectives - Services that matter

page 71



Printed by: Jo Avery SPAR.net
Print Date: Monday, November 21, 

2022 14:04

their external audit to achieve 
an unqualified opinion. By 
Sept 2022 Published on 
website

accounting treatment of 
Infrastructure Assets. 
National issue with delays.

Achieved CDS-PA-2721 Update the corporate 
Equalities policy

Communications, 
Digital Services 
and Engagement 
Team 

Policy updated and 
agreeded by Council June 
2021

Key Strategic Objective
Objective 
Status

Code Objective Service Comments

Priority: Services that matter

Service Plan Objectives - Services that matter

page 72



 
 

Scrutiny Committee Forward Plan 2022 / 23 

 

 

Work for scoping and/or allocation to the Forward Plan 
 
 

 

Proposed date Topic 

11 January 2023 Joint Budget meeting with the Overview Committee – day 1 (Scrutiny Chair) 

 

12 January 2023 Joint Budget meeting with the Overview Committee – day 2 (Overview Chair) 

 

2 February 2023 Portfolio Holder Annual Report Cllr Geoff Jung – Coast, Country and 
Environment 

 

2 February 2023 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report Cllr Marianne Rixson – Climate Action & 
Emergency Response 

 

2 February 2023 Portfolio Holder Annual Report Cllr Dan Ledger – Strategic Planning 

 

2 February 2023 One Devon integrated health care strategy 

 

2 February 2023 
TBC 

Expenditure on consultants and agency staff 2020/21 (follow up from 
meeting of 2 December 2021) 

 

 

2 March 2023 

 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report Cllr Sarah Jackson – Democracy, 
Transparency & Communications 
 

 

2 March 2023 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report Cllr John Loudoun – Council & Corporate 
Communication 
 

 

2 March 2023 

 
Quarterly performance report – Q3 
 

 

6 April 2023 

 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report Cllr Nick Hookway – Tourism, Leisure, Sport 
& Culture 

TBC  Consideration of the use and provision of all forms of renewable energy 
across the whole district 
 

TBC  Strategic review of policy formation (proposal form from Cllr Allen, agreed at 
June meeting) – scoping report awaited 
 

page 73

Agenda Item 11



TBC Procedure for putting forward alternative strategies (proposal form from Cllr 
Allen, agreed at June meeting) – scoping report awaited 

TBC Proposal from Mid Devon DC Scrutiny Committee regarding a joint review 
into the planning controls and regulatory requirements associated with the 
bio-energy industry within Devon, in particular anaerobic digesters (details 
circulated to Members by email on 10 December 2021) – update: response 
from MDDC currently awaited (as at 22 November 2022) 
 

TBC – keep under 
review 

Local Plan Sites – Allocations to Delivery  
The Joint Overview and Scrutiny meeting of 17th January 2022 [minute 43c] 
recommended ‘a review of the Statement of Community Involvement and 
consultations on planning applications to consider making greater use of site 
notices to publicise planning applications’ Goodmores Farm could be 
considered as part of this work if the concern relates to the consultation 
specifically (agreed at meeting on 3 March 2022).   
 
This item to be kept under review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For noting: Database of assets owned by the Council.   
 
Note:  This work is in-hand through Strata with a demonstration for Members 
planned at a meeting of the Asset Management Forum 
 

 
Correspondence regarding Scrutiny Committee topics 
 

Date received  Details 
 

8 June 2022 Correspondence from Mr G Crawford regarding storm overflow discharge at 
Exmouth following the response to questions from SWW 
 

28 June 2022 Correspondence from Mr G Crawford to advise that the Ofwat investigation 
into raw sewage dumping has been extended to include SWW 
 

 

page 74


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	8 Portfolio Holder Annual Report - Sustainable Homes and Communities
	9 Update on draft Training Strategy
	10 Quarterly Performance Report
	011222 Appendix A PI report Qrt 2 2022-23
	011222 Appendix B Service objectives Qrt 2 2022-23
	Better homes and communities - Chart Qrt 2
	Better homes and communities - Key Service Objectives Qrt 2
	Greener East Devon - Chart Qrt 2
	Greener East Devon - Key Service Objectives Qrt 2
	A resilient Economy - Chart Qrt 2
	A resilient Economy - Key Service Objectives Qrt 2
	Services that matter - Chart Qrt 2
	Services that matter - Key Service Objectives Qrt 2


	11 Forward Plan

